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Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 5 November 2008. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the operation of department stores and
community shopping malls in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The Group is one of the long established Shenzhen-based
department store chains. Targeting the mid-market
segment, it runs its department stores under the K
and “Shirble Plaza” brands. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group operated and/or managed 14 department stores, 9
of which are located in Shenzhen, three in Shanwei, one
in Meizhou City and one in Changsha, with a total gross
floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 242,842 sg.m, of which
38.0% are the self-owned properties.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B gm
’;[r
Year ended 31 December

RMB’000 BZ212A31A1LEE
ARBTR 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Revenue WA 190,666 191,576 230,118 481,077 794,582
Operating (loss)/profit me(ER),/ G (356,338)  (595,402)  (398,692) 28,134 333,228
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETERAT(E518) /5 F (406,504) (669,263) (475,349 (43,015) 268,393
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners AREER ARG

of the Company (B18)/ &7 (340,982)  (656,117)  (438,043) (75,116) 136,811
(Loss)/earning per share for the (loss)/ 72 G AEGE R

profit attributable to owners of the (B18)/ Mz &

Company during the year (B1R),/ BF(LSHK

(expressed in RMB per share) ARESIE)

- Basic and diluted —ERREE (0.14) (0.22) (0.18) (0.03) 0.05

At 31 December

RMB’000 M12831H
ARBT R 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Total assets BEE 2,342,421 2,899,686 3,971,288 4,248,525 4,376,810
Total liabilities BEE 1,556,574 1,783,175 2,293,414 2,129,709 2,144,111
Total equity R 785,847 1,116,511 1,677,874 2,118,816 2,232,699

Year ended 31 December 2023

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZ2023F12831HILEE HE2022F12A31ALERE
Department Department
store store
business Others Group business Others Group
BEEEK At 5@ BEEEER Eth F5E
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Revenue WA 190,666 - 190,666 191,576 191,576
Operating profit/(loss) LEEF /(B8 3,124  (359,462)  (356,338)  (402972)  (192,430)  (595,402)
Loss before income tax BEERAER (40,659)  (365845)  (406,504) (462575  (206,688)  (669,263)
Loss for the year EREE (32,737) (317,672  (350,409) (374,975  (181519)  (556,494)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRME

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the business
operations and financial performance of the Group
continued facing challenges even though the pandemic
control and prevention measures have been cancelled in
China from the end of 2022.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China
(“NBS”), the total gross domestic product (“GDP”) of China
in 2023 amounted to RMB126,058.2 trillion, representing
a year-on-year increase of 4.6% and the growth rate
was slightly improved from 3.0% in 2022. The national
consumer price index (“CPI”) in December 2023 was
0.3% lower year-on-year, and CPIl in 2023 decreased by
1.8% year-on-year. The amount of the total retail sales of
consumer goods in 2023 in China increased 7.2% year-on-
year, as compared to the decrease of 2.0% in 2022.

In the first half of 2023, there was significant downward
pressure on the global economy, and China’s overall
external market demand also experienced a slow down.
The impact of the pandemic in China was reducing
significantly, but due to the slowdown in the impact on the
supply side, the demand pressure has come up gradually.
The level of consumption has rebounded, and investment
in infrastructure and manufacturing has grown. Entering
into the second half of 2023, the momentum of economic
recovery has slowed down due to the weak internal
impetus and insufficient demand. The real estate market in
China is still in the bottoming stage with high uncertainty.
The level of consumption maintains a moderate recovery,
with consumer confidence and spending power expected
to be further improved.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recorded the revenue of RMB190.7 million (2022:
RMB191.6 million). Loss attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to RMB341.0 million (2022:
RMB556.1 million). The Group continues to operate a one-
stop shopping mall concept to meet the demand of the
middle class population in the PRC for high-quality food,
merchandise and services.

Furthermore, online platforms and membership loyal
programs are shaping the retail industry crucially for the
consumers seeking goods and services in online channels
and bulk purchases become a habit after pandemic. The
Group utilised different online platforms to promote and
stimulate consumers’ enthusiasm and continue to provide
quality goods and services to increase the customer
patronage and enhance the shopping experience to attract
and retain new customers.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group operated and/or
managed 14 department stores with a total gross floor area
of 242,841.9 sg.m., of which 38.0% are the self-owned
properties.

With the economic downside risk relating to the highly
leveraged real estate sector, the Group has reduced the
property investments and implemented proactive measures
to mitigate the negative impact and to strengthen business
resilience and enhance customer engagement on the retail
business.

In early 2024, China has vowed to strengthen certain
monetary and fiscal policy expansionary to support growth
recovery and to rebuild market sentiments. However, the
uncertainty in property sectors and ongoing deflationary
pressures in China may have impact on the general
consumer spending, and the physical department store
business will inevitably continue to face challenges in 2024.

Looking ahead, the Group will focus on the core
department store business, and consolidate its resources,
strengthen the management and adopt prudent
business strategies to mitigate the pressure from the
economic slowdown and continue to seize future market
opportunities.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI-&—-_E"
MIEJEHTHHH&/-\*)? @ 7

The operating results of the Group for the year ended 31 REEHE2023F12 A1 AL FEEHKRE
December 2023 are presented in two reportable operating ¥EBELUMETRESILEN - B : (@B E
segments, namely (a) department store business and (b) 2% ROEMBREEMEES N ADE A
others including property business and unallocated items, B TERFEAXREERY - THFwmk
comprising mainly head office overheads. The following DMTTERAEB BN S EBK DI RNLE
discussions and analyses are based on the Group as a EEEL -
whole and the operating results of each of the business
segments.
Revenue of the Group were all contributed from the B £2023F K 2022F 12 A31H IFF
department store business for the years ended 31 B AEBHMBRAZBEHRBEEEER
December 2023 and 2022. Revenue of the Group Bt o BLE20283F 12 ABTHLLFE -
amounted to RMB190.7 million for the year ended 31 AREBRHKAAEARKEI0.7HEE T
December 2023, representing a slight decrease of 82022F AR¥191.6 8 & L B HUR
0.5%, as compared to RMB191.6 million in 2022. 0.5% -
Loss attributable to owners of the Company H £ 20239F 202212 B31 HIEF
amounted to RMB341.0 million and RMB556.1 million E ARBHAEAEBEEESNAAR
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, B .0EETRARKSS6.1BETT °
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
MIEJE nj-nm&/-\*ﬁ'

Set forth below is the segmental information of
the Group’s department store business for the

TXF# A E2023F12 A31 B L4
EAREEBEEEXBENDEER - EF

year ended 31 December 2023, together with the

comparative figures for the year ended 31 December

HIE2022F12 A3 B I FEHE ST ¢

2022:
Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31HLLEE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMBFTT
Revenue WA 190,666 191,576
Other operating revenue H A WA 29,886 31,852
Other gains/(losses) — net Hlz /(18 ) %58 57,486 (240,300
Fair value loss on investment properties REYENNFESE (156,004) (221,877)
Purchase of and changes in inventories GFERENES) (6,667) (5,196)
Employee benefit expenses BERAREX (27,715) (42,911)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  #r & & # 55 (3,198) (12,341)
Net impairment losses on financial assets & Bl & 7 H) R {E E5 18 % 58 (3,328) (22,210)
Other operating expenses — net E AR B 2 55 (78,002) (81,565)
Operating profit/(loss) BERA(EE) 3,124 (402,972)
Finance income AEKA 9,279 10,588
Finance costs B & AR (53,062) (70,191)
Finance costs — net BB KA FRE (43,783) (59,603)
Loss before income tax BRETEHATEE (40,659) (462,575)
Income tax credit PRSI R 7,922 87,600
Loss for the year FEBE (32,737) (374,975)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBHNWE DN

Revenue

Revenue breakdown of the Group’s department store
business for the two years ended 31 December 2023

and 2022 were as follows:

Year ended 31 December

KA
H E20234 K 2022F 12 A31 A IE WA
FE - AEEFHEEESAOW AR
—F:

Percentage of
department store’s
revenue of the Group

HAEEEEE

BZ12A31ALLFE WARNBE S
2023 2022 2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000 % %

ARETT ARETR
Rental income HLUWA 182,939 184,471 95.9 96.3
Direct sales HEZHEE 7,396 6,466 3.9 3.4
Commission from

concessionaire sales BEHERE 331 639 0.2 0.3
Total Foby 190,666 191,576 100.0 100.0

Rental income decreased slightly by 0.9% to
RMB182.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 from RMB184.5 million in 2022. Direct sales
increased by 13.8% to RMB7.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 from RMB6.5 million in

2022.

The slight decrease in rental income mainly
attributable to the store adjustment during the
pandemic, offset by the gradual recovery in
consumption in 2023 after the pandemic prevention
and control measures had been relaxed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEHNWE DN

10

Other operating revenue

Other operating revenue decreased to RMB29.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 from
RMB32.0 million in 2022. The decrease mainly
due to the decrease in promotion, administration
and management income, offset by the increase in
government grant.

Other gains/(losses) — net

Other gains — net amounted to RMB57.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, as compared to
other losses — net amounted to RMB240.3 million
in 2022, primarily due to a gain from write-off of
long aging trade and other payables of RMB25.2
million and a gain from modification of leases of
RMB30.6 million in 2023. As compared to a net loss
of RMB164.1 million was recognised mainly due
to that the Group and the lessor of Shiyan Store
entered into the early termination agreement of the
lease agreement as well as the Group signed overall
sublease agreements and a net loss of RMB89.2
million was recognised in 2022.

Fair value loss on investment properties

Fair value loss on investment properties decreased to
RMB156.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 from RMB221.9 million in 2022.

Purchase of and changes in inventories
Purchase of and changes in inventories amounted
to RMB6.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, representing an increase of 28.8%, as
compared to RMB5.2 million in 2022, which was in
line with the trend in direct sales.

HEMAZE YA

H W A R2022F M ARE32.08
BURLEERE2023F 12831 B ILAF
ERARK20EET - ZB DT ER
MRS « ITERIERIRARR D - IR
T B I8 AN AT 8 o

Bz ~(FE)FHE
HE2023F12A31HIEFEE - Hle
WFHEAARBSTSHEIT - M20224F
Hi B8 Fm A ARB2403EE T
FEBR2023F - HIHE S R EMER
RIEBHERPEREGREARKE2528
B REETHEWZARKI06ES
JC o M R2022 FHERFHERARE
1641EETL TERASEELAE
HHEASRTRAKIEAERZ - LUEAK

.AA uTTgﬁﬂﬁ—rfﬂTm ﬁﬁ /?EHT‘E
ANREBI2HETT ©

REYWEN A FEES
WEMHEN AT EREEHR2022FMAR
221 9BE LB EH E2023F 12 A
S1REIEFENARKI56.0688 T °

FEREBREZE
HE2023F12831BItFE 78
RENEHBEAEARETAEE T
B2022F W ARBES52H & T iE 0
28.8% ' HEEIHEBY —H -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBHNWE DN

Employee benefit expenses
Employee benefit expenses decreased by 35.4% to
RMB27.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 from RMB42.9 million in 2022, primarily due to
the streamline of labour force.

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses decreased
significantly by 74.0% to RMBS.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 from RMB12.3 million
in 2022, mainly due to certain assets have been
transferred to investment properties during the year.

Other operating expenses - net

Other operating expenses, which principally
comprised of utility expenses, advertising,
marketing, promotion and related expenses, other
tax expenses, bank charges, exchange differences
and maintenance expenses, decreased by 4.4% to
RMB78.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 from RMB81.6 million in 2022 due to the
effective cost control and measures implemented by
the Group.

Operating profit/(loss)

As a result of the reasons mentioned above, the
operating profit of the department store business
segment amounted to RMB3.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, as compared to the
operating loss of RMB403.0 million in 2022.

Finance income

Finance income amounted to RMB9.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, as compared to
RMB10.6 million in 2022, mainly due to the decrease
in interest income from finance lease, offset by the
increase in interest income from bank deposits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEHNWE DN

12

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by 24.4% to RMB53.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, as
compared to RMB70.2 million in 2022, mainly due to
the decrease in interest expenses on operating leases
as the lessee and the decrease in interest expenses
on bank loans.

Income tax credit

Income tax credit amounted to RMB7.9 million and
RMB87.6 million for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, respectively.

Loss for the year

As a result of the aforementioned, loss attributable to
the department store business segment amounted
to RMB32.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, as compared to the loss of RMB375.0 million in
2022.

Others represents mainly property business and
unallocated items including directors emoluments,
staff costs and operating expenses incurred for
headquarter or administrative purposes which were
not directly attributable to department store business
segment. Such losses amounted to RMB317.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, as compared
to the losses amounted to RMB181.5 million in 2022,
mainly due to the prevailing weak market sentiment in
real estate sector, the provisions of impairment loss
on the financial assets and properties held for sales
of RMB201.2 million and RMB96 million respectively,
and the net impairment loss on prepayment of
RMB62.95 million were made in 2023.

BER K

HE2023F12 A31HILFERNFEK
T P24.4%E ARESIAEEL * i
2022F A B ARKBT702H5ETL * =EMH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBHNWE DN

The Board does not recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits amounted to
RMBG67.2 million, representing a decrease of 29.1% from
RMB94.8 million as of 31 December 2022. The cash and
cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits, which were
in RMB and Hong Kong dollars, were deposited with banks
in the PRC and Hong Kong for interest income.

The Group had long-term and short-term borrowings of
RMB520.3 million and RMB36.2 million, respectively as of
31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: long-term and
short-term borrowings of RMB540.9 million and RMB45.2
million, respectively), mainly representing the secured
bank borrowing denominated in RMB secured by the
charge of properties in the PRC. The gearing ratio, which
is calculated by the Group’s total borrowings divided by its
shareholders equity, was 70.8% as of 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: 52.5%).

The net current liabilities of the Group as of 31 December
2023 were RMB427.2 million (31 December 2022:
RMB73.1 million). The net assets of the Group as of 31
December 2023 decreased to RMB785.8 million (31
December 2022: RMB1,116.5 million).

The business operation of the Group is primarily in the PRC
with most of its transactions settled in RMB. Certain of the
Group’s cash and bank balances are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recorded a net foreign exchange gain of RMB5.1
million (2022: RMB3.2 million). The Group has not used any
forward contracts, currency borrowings or other means to
hedge its foreign currency exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEHNWE DN

As of 31 December 2023, the total number of employees of
the Group was 216 (31 December 2022: 254). The Group’s
remuneration policy is determined with reference to
market conditions and the performance, qualifications and
experience of individual employees. The Company has also
introduced the key performance indicators assessment
scheme to boost performance and operational efficiency.

Certain tenants and an ex-employee have commenced
legal proceedings in the PRC against the Group in respect
of disputes over contract terms and employment contract
terms. As of 31 December 2023, the legal proceedings
are ongoing. The Group has estimated the amount of
contingent liabilities of approximately RMB2,765,000
(2022: RMB631,000).

On 23 November 2023, the lease agreement (the “Lease
Agreement”) entered into between Shenzhen Shirble
Department Store Company Limited* (FIImEEEH
fR A &), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the lessee and Shenzhen Ruizhuo Investment Company
Limited* (RYITHIm 2R EZERBRQF), as the lessor,
in relation to the lease of the office premises located
in Luohu Distract, Shenzhen, the PRC as the Group’s
principal office in the PRC. Pursuant to IFRS 16 “Leases”,
the Group recognised a right-of-use asset in its financial
statements when the Group enters into a lease transaction
as the lessee and such transaction was deemed to be
an acquisition of capital asset for the purpose of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Lease Agreement constitutes a connected transaction
for the Company. As the highest applicable percentage
ratio (as defined under the Listing Rules) in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreement is
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Lease Agreement is
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempt from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEBHNWE DN

On 29 December 2023, the lease agreement (the “Renewal
Lease Agreement”) entered into between Shenzhen
Shirble Chain Store Limited Liability Company* (&Y=
EHEEEEREAR AT, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as the lessee and Shenzhen Talents Housing
Group Company Limited* (xINTH AT ZEEEER AR,
as the lessor in relation to the lease renewal of the premises
located in Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC as one
of the Group’s department stores. Pursuant to IFRS 16
“Leases”, the Group recognised a right-of-use asset in its
financial statements when the Group enters into a lease
transaction as the lessee and such transaction was deemed
to be an acquisition of capital asset for the purpose of the
Listing Rules. The Renewal Lease Agreement constitutes
a connected transaction for the Company. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio (as defined in the Listing Rules)
in respect of the transaction contemplated under the
Renewal Lease Agreement is more than 25% but less than
100%, the transaction contemplated under the Renewal
Lease Agreement constitutes a major transaction of the
Company and is subject to the reporting, announcement,
circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. As no shareholder has
any material interest in the Renewal Lease Agreement and
the transaction contemplated thereunder and therefore
no shareholder would be required to abstain from voting if
the Company were to convene a general meeting for the
approval of the Renewal Lease Agreement. The Company
has received a written approval from Shirble Department
Store Limited, one of the controlling shareholders, holding
55.08% of the total number of shares (the “Shares”) of
the Company in issue as of 29 December 2023 to approve
the Renewal Lease Agreement. As such, the Company
would not convene a general meeting for the purpose of
seeking the approval of the shareholders on the entering
into of the Renewal Lease Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder.

Save as disclosed above, there were no material acquisition

and disposal of subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2023.

No significant events have taken place subsequent to 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEREEAR

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong, Chairlady

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong, aged 59, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 26 May 2020 and a Chairlady of
the Board on 26 September 2021. Ms. HUANG has more
than 15 years of experience in administrative and business
matters. Ms. HUANG is responsible for the formulation of
the overall business development strategy of the Group.
Ms. HUANG is the spouse of the late Mr. YANG Xiangbo,
the founder of the Group, and the mother of Mr. YANG Ti
Wei, an executive Director.

Mr. YANG Ti Wei, Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Mr. YANG Ti Wei, aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer on 7 September 2013
and re-designated from the Co-Chairman of the Board to
the Deputy Chairman of the Board on 26 September 2021.
Mr. YANG joined the Group in June 2009 as the executive
vice president of the Group. He is principally responsible
for providing overall management and operational
directions of the Group. Mr. YANG is also a director of
Shirble Department Store (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shirble
Department Store (Hong Kong)”), Shirble Department
Store Investment Limited (“Shirble Hong Kong”),
Cosmic Favour Limited, Baotong (BVI) Company Limited,
Baotong E-commence (Hong Kong) Company Limited and
Lawbo Investment Limited, and a legal representative of
Shanwei Shirble Department Store Co., Ltd., Luhe Shirble
Department Store Co., Ltd. and Lufeng Shirble Department
Store Co., Ltd. Mr. YANG obtained a bachelor’'s degree
in business management from the University of Surrey in
England in 2010. Mr. YANG is the son of Ms. HUANG Xue
Rong, a Chairlady of the Board.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEREEAR

Mr. CHEN Fengliang, Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee

Mr. CHEN Fengliang, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010.
Mr. CHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from the Inner Mongolia University in 1995. From 1995
to 1998, Mr. CHEN was a planning officer in the planning
department of the Yike Zhao League branch of The
Agricultural Bank of China. From 1998 to 2001, Mr. CHEN
studied at the Graduate School of the People’s Bank of
China and obtained a master’s degree in economics in
2001. From 2001 to 2016, Mr. CHEN was the secretary to
the president’s office of China Eagle Securities Company
Limited, the manager of risk control of China Eagle Asset
Management Company Limited, the director of investment
of Shanghai Sino-V Asset Management Company
Limited and the vice general manager of the business
development department of Chinalion Securities Co., Ltd..
Currently, Mr. CHEN is the general manager of Shenzhen
Dezhonghengzheng Investment Company Limited.

Mr. JIANG Hongkai, Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Mr. JIANG Hongkai, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2010. Mr.
JIANG obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in chemistry
from South China Normal School in 1986. From 1986 to
1994, Mr. JIANG was a high school teacher. In 1994, Mr.
JIANG became qualified as a lawyer in China after passing
an examination required for admission as a PRC lawyer.
From 1994 to 2003, Mr. JIANG worked as a lawyer in
Guangdong Jihe Law Firm. Since 2003, Mr. JIANG has
been working as a lawyer in the King & Capital (Shenzhen)
Law Firm (formerly known as the Shenzhen branch of King
& Capital Law Firm).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkEREEAR

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong, Chairperson of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 March 2021.
Mr. TSANG is a former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers
in Hong Kong and China and has over 30 years of
experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. TSANG
received a bachelor degree in business administration
from Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. TSANG is an independent non-executive
director of the following companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”): China Merchants China
Direct Investments Limited (stock code: 00133), Sihuan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Limited (stock code:
00460) and TK Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
02283). Mr. TSANG is an independent director of HUYA
Inc (stock code: HUYA), a company listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. Mr. TSANG was an independent non-
executive director of CA Cultural Technology Group Limited
(stock code: 01566) from November 2014 to November
2022, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHOW Chun Pong, aged 45, the chief financial officer
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. CHOW joined
the Group in April 2010. He is responsible for overseeing
the financial and compliance matters of the Group.
Mr. CHOW received a bachelor’s degree in accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified for Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

18

BEXEE FRZECFTERTIZ

RIREZBEHE

A

o
Y

WEESL A 7157 20213 A30HEZR
TRBIENTES - BAERBENFEH
BEFKESHTMEBANAEGEA  RE
ARABERAFBEHARNBIIRHIER
HABHOFHLER - BEEMBBEBHRX
ARENTIHERS T2 - BRABBGETAD
AEEFREE - hEZMEMBee8
RERBTARSTMACEREE -

BEAERABTIREBBHAER S ([HR
FFDEREMARIMNBIUIENTES - B
RHBEESAHRAR(RMHASE : 00133) + I
IREE LT IR B AR AR (JRHHRE + 00460)
REISE(ZER)BRAA(BRMDARSR :
02283) - A A —ENBAHNELEIZ L
MHIAE] * HUYA Inc(RMRSE - HUYA) 5
VEE - R2014F11 AE2022%F 11 A
REFEREMAREELRIESEBEERA
B (B HR5R - 01566) MBI IENITES -

BRI E - 455% - ARBNEREVBE R
NEIWME o FEAER2010F48 MAKRER -
BArEBEEBAEENTBRARET -
Bt EEEAE T AS ST EE 4 8 .
BEESGFTMASEFTERERFSTA

RETMAGEREE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F[E# 4



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Board is pleased to present the report on the affairs
of the Company, together with the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report, for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5 November 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
are department store operations and property development
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set forth in the consolidated income statement on
page 58 of this report.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of movements in investment properties during the
year are set forth in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set forth in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EEERE

Details of the Company’s authorised and issued share
capital as of 31 December 2023 are set forth in note 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2023, distributable reserves of the
Company included the Company’s accumulated loss in
the amount of RMB637.3 million and the Company’s share
premium in the amount of RMB751.0 million. Details of the
movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set forth in
notes 27 to 28 to the consolidated financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

The Group made no charitable donations for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
and the laws of the Cayman Islands do not impose any
limitations on such rights.

Employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
and Hong Kong are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes. Particulars of these
retirement plans are set forth in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong (Chairlady)

Mr. YANG Ti Wei (Deputy chairman and Chief Executive
Officer)

Mr. CHEN Fengliang
Mr. JIANG Hongkai
Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors
shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election of such meeting and any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any
Director appointed pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles
shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-
election.
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In accordance with the Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. YANG
Ti Wei and Mr. CHEN Fengliang will retire by rotation. All
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong, the non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a terms of three years commenced from 26 May 2023 and
the annual director’s fee is HK$300,000. Ms. HUANG Xue
Rong’s annual director’s fee was adjusted to HK$180,000
effective from 1 February 2024 which was approved by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board in January 2024.

Mr. YANG Ti Wei, the executive Director, has entered into
service agreements with the Company for a term of three
years commenced from 7 September 2022. During this
period, Mr. YANG will be entitled to a fixed annual director’s
emolument of HK$600,000.

Mr. CHEN Fengliang and Mr. JIANG Hongkai, the
independent non-executive Directors, have signed letters
of appointment for a term of three years commenced
from 18 June 2023 and each of the annual director’s fee
is HK$300,000. The other independent non-executive
Director Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong has signed letter of
appointment for a term of three years commenced from 30
March 2021 and his annual director’s fee is HK$300,000.
The annual director’s fee of each of Mr. CHEN Fengliang
and Mr. JIANG Hongkai was adjusted to HK$180,000
effective from 1 February 2024 which was approved by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board in January 2024.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
or has proposed to enter into any service agreements with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other than contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).

22

RIEZERAMAESAG  BEBTLERRES
EERBESE - 2BREEFTTRERL
BERNEERRBFAS LEIERBE -

FMITEEEE AR EEBARAGI VL E
£ H2023F5 26 H AN - BHI=4F -
FEEEWS B300,00BTT -  BFAL
TEH2024F2A1HEAEFEEFTHE S
180,000/ 7T * WiR2024F1 AESHME S
eREESHMHE -

WTESHESEEED BARF TR W
% TEIAR2022F9A7HE A =F - I it
HE - BAEREREVNEEFEESHE
600,000 7T °

FNTEERE=EERTIARTLED ES
REBE . THMA2023F6 18R A =F
MMM FEEEWBSE S A300,00087T ° B—
FPITESQEXLENCRIZEE (T
HA2021F3 A0 A =F HFEE
E# P A300,0008 7T o BRIE =584 KT R F
FHEBA024F21HEARFEEEWBEE
180,000/ 7T * WHR2024F1 AESHME B
EREESHE -

B EXPEEES  SIEEFTEARAHE
EART BT B8 2RI AT S skt AT SL (o] AR 7% thp st (10
—FAERKATREIRER —FRARK M
BAXMEAEEE CEERERIN) A KR
SRS

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F[E# 4



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

As of 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive in the Shares, the
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of the associated corporations of the Company (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which were required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) set forth in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

HZE2023F 128310 » EE @ REETHRA
BRARR AR REMABR LB -
BEROGREFTNEZRAR (TERES
MERE GO ([ BHREBEHKRE ) HEXVEL)
Fres (a )EZ EA R B EEFIEXVEET R8N E
BHAARBIRBRA(BEREESRPEE
W%ﬁ%ﬁm'ﬁﬁﬁﬁiWE%%E%¥
KKR)  (0)BARBIRIEE S RBEEGFE
3@12ﬁfmﬁﬁﬁm S (C)IRIEEH K
EiEG LRI ETRRE )M ERCIFTHE A
ESFARAA AR REERAT a0

Number of Percentage of

Name of directors Capacity Note Shares shareholding
EEHE g4 {iE RGEE BRESHL
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong Beneficial owner 8,324,000 0.33%
BEERL L EnlEA A

Administrator 1 1,374,167,500 55.08%

EEA
Mr. YANG Ti Wei Beneficial owner 2,490,000 0.09%
BRERTE E=EBA
Note: Mtz -

(1) Ms. HUANG Xue Rong has been appointed as the
administrator of the estate of Mr. YANG Xiangbo,
which include all the issued share capital of Xiang
Rong Investment Limited (“Xiang Rong”). Xiang
Rong owns the entire issued share capital of Shirble
Department Store Limited (“Shirble BVI”). As such,
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is deemed to be interested in
the 1,374,167,500 Shares held by Shirble BVI.
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EEEHE

Name of associated

Number of
shares of
associated Percentage of

Name of director corporations Capacity Note corporation shareholding
AR

BExps HEEE SR 54 Mt RHEE FRESE
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong  Shirble BVI Administrator 1 50,000 100%
BERLL PR EBVI EEA

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong  Xiang Rong Administrator 1 100 100%
BEART Xiang Rong EEA

Note: 5T -

(1) Ms. HUANG Xue Rong has been appointed as the
administrator of the estate of Mr. YANG Xiangbo,
which include all the issued share capital of Xiang
Rong. Xiang Rong owns the entire issued share capital
of Shirble BVI.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2023, to
the knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in any
of the Shares, the underlying Share and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was
required to be (a) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO; or (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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As of 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed to have interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares as notified to the Company pursuant
to Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

MN2023FE12A31H U FAL(ARQRAESE
i TEABRRIN) AR B R AR sk A8 78
B&AD o A S R AR R E 5 R
EIEPIEXVEE2 R E3D BANS AR R K
AR BIREE S KA E KD E3361KBET
MELMARNERIAE

Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity Note Shares shareholding
HE B4 Bt et KRG EE BERES
Shirble BVI Beneficial Owner 1 1,374,167,500 55.08%
PREBVI BB A

Xiang Rong Interest in a controlled corporation 1 1,374,167,500 55.08%
Xiang Rong ZEHEER R

Mr. HAO Jian Min Beneficial Owner 374,250,000 15.00%
TR EE EnlAA

Note: OB

(1)  The 1,374,167,500 Shares were held by Shirble BVI, which
was wholly owned by Xiang Rong. Ms. HUANG Xue Rong
has been appointed as the administrator of the estate of Mr.
YANG Xiangbo, which include all the issued share capital of
Xiang Rong. According to the SFO, both of Ms. HUANG Xue
Rong and Xiang Rong were deemed to have interests in the
1,374,167,500 Shares held by Shirble BVI.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2023, the
Directors were not aware of any person (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) or corporation
who had any interests or short positions in the Shares and
the underlying Shares pursuant to Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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(1)  BREBVIFE1,374,167,500 & B 15 + 0 5%
 BVId Xiang Rong Investment®= & A °
BERLITCEZTABHEREENEET
A - Ef B fEXiang RongFT B B # 17 E&
R o IRIBFEF REAE KA ETELZ T kXiang
Rong Investmentd # 1% & % B 5% & BVIFT
1,374,167, ,500/% f% {5 B0 iz ©

Br EXCPTIREE SN - EiE2023F12A31H -
BTV AABEEMEMAL(ZEERAQA] &
BITHA BRRAIN) SOEBR D RAEER D

HHEMREES MAERNEXVEE2RE
SHMWAEMEARRF  AARRFIREZFSK
B &0 55 336 IR A B 17 B 5L it A Ay i s ok

S
KA o
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The employees’ and Directors’ remuneration is determined
with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies,
experience, responsibilities and performance of the Group.
In addition to the fees, salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances, benefits in kind or bonuses, the Company has
conditionally adopted Employees’ Share Award Scheme
pursuant to which the participants, including the Directors,
may reward shares directly.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set forth in
notes 10 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

As of 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
5 November 2010 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) and the then
executive Directors (collectively, the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the
Company with effect from the listing date. The Covenantors
have provided the Group with written confirmations
that they and their associates (other than members of
the Group) have fully complied with the deed of non-
competition for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with
the deed of non-competition, the options, the pre-emptive
rights or first rights of refusals provided by the Controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Prospectus) on their
existing or future competing business.
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No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company and its Associated Corporations” above,
at no time during the year was the Company and any
of its subsidiaries of the Company and its associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

At no time during the year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any
other body corporate.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together
were 18.2% and 25.1%, respectively of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases and cost of rendering of services
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers taken together were 17.1% and 51.1%,
respectively of the Group’s total purchases and cost of
rendering of services for the year.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any interest in the share capital of the
Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers for
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Group has long-term and short-term borrowings of
RMB520.3 million and RMB36.2 million, respectively as
of 31 December 2023 (2022: long-term and short-term
borrowing of RMB540.9 million and RMB45.2 million,
respectively), mainly representing the secured bank
borrowing denominated in RMB secured by the charge of
properties in the PRC.

Details of the related party transactions which were
undertaken in the ordinary course of business are set forth
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the connected transactions during the year are
set forth in “Material acquisition and disposal” under the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this report.

The transactions stated below are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business, and constitute
continuing connected transactions exempt from the
reporting, announcement, annual renew and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 10 January 2022,
Shirble Chain Store leased from Ruizhuo Investment a
property of 39.02 sg.m. located at Bao’an Road, Luohu
District, Shenzhen, China for the period from 10 January
2022 to 9 January 2025 at a monthly rental of RMB1,678,
i.e. an annual rental of RMB20,136. The property is used
as a tobacco sales counter of the Group’s Hongbao
store. Ruizhuo Investment is owned in equal shares by
Mr. ZHU Bijiang, who is a member of the Group’s senior
management team and Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s cousin, and Ms.
ZHU Bihui, who is also Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s cousin. Hence,
Ruizhuo Investment is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
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The above transaction involves the lease of property from
an entity controlled by Mr. YANG Ti Wei or his associates.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate
annual rental paid under the lease agreement with Ruizhuo
Investment amounted to RMB20,136 after tax. Since the
transaction (the “Transaction”) under the agreement with
Ruizhuo Investment, as confirmed by the Directors, are on
normal commercial terms and the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the Transaction were on an annual
basis, less than 5% and the annual consideration is less
than HK$3.0 million, it falls within the deminimis threshold
as stipulated under Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules,
the Transaction is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

LR HHF R AGERE LR EBEAE

IR ERBHEEYE

HE2023F12A31BIEFE » BIEERER
B VMZHEERENENFESHBEER
BEARAR®E20,1367T - ARG ERER] L2
ZHFEETRG (I RBEEEHERIL—
MEEKTET  RZERFIZERES L
RILFAEERNE% - BFEREBENI0ES
BT BRLEMRAIE14A.76(1)(C)IKFTH 2
RERERE  UZRFPERRETLETR

AIFV4ARIE T HER - FERH

PRERHLERRE ©

VNS E AV

Interest
Gross floor attributable
Location area (sq.m.) to the Group Land use Lease term
BEEE BRA%E
it B (EFK) 2R LA B
Podium 101, Phase 3 17,843.87 100% Department store of Five years commencing

Taoyuan Village,
Nanshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC
BRI TR L &
BORN = BIfRAR 1015
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Based on the information that is publicly available and with
in the knowledge of the Directors at the latest practicable
date prior to the publication of this report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 and
at any time up to the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this report.

Save as disclosed under the “Connected Transactions”
and “Exempt continuing connected transactions” sections
above and in notes 35 to the consolidated financial
statements with the section headed “Related Party
Transactions”, no Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements with the section headed “Related Party
Transactions”, at no time during the year had the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance or any contract of significance for the provision
of services by the Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding
of the Shares. Intending holders and investors of the
Company’s shares are recommended to consult their
professional advisers if they are in any doubt as to the
taxation implications (including tax relief) of subscribing for,
purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in shares. It is
emphasised that none of the Company or its Directors or
officers will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on,
or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company resulting
from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal of
or dealing in such Shares.

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set forth in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
of this report.

2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company will be presented in a separate report and
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange on the same day of this report.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

YANG Ti Wei

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

28 March 2024
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance. In the opinion of
the Directors, throughout the year ended 31 December
20283, the Company has complied with the applicable
principles and code provisions set forth in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to
the Listing Rules.

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term
success of the Company. Its key responsibilities include
providing leadership and supervision to the Management
with a view to protecting the Shareholders’ interests and
enhancing Shareholders’ long-term value.

The Board has established the Group’s purpose, values
and strategies and was satisfied that they are aligned with
the Group’s culture. All Directors must act with integrity,
lead by example, and promote the desired culture. The
Board should instil and continually reinforce across
the Company’s values of “acting lawfully, ethically and
responsibly”.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
closely monitored the implementation of corporate
governance practice, risk management and internal control
systems to ensure the corporate value and the Company’s
culture are aligned.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure
that sound and effective internal controls are maintained
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets and review the effectiveness of the
internal control system annually. Procedures have been
designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations,
ensure reliability of financial reporting, identify and manage
potential risks, safeguard assets of the Group and ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Board is responsible for overall management and
control of the Company including formulation and approval
of overall strategies, performing corporate governance
duties, material transactions, business plans and other
significant financial and operational matters to enhance
the value to shareholders. The Board has delegated the
responsibilities for day-to-day operations and management
of the Group’s business to the executive director and senior
management of the Company.

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is the Chairlady of the Group
and Mr. YANG Ti Wei is the Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group. The Chairlady are
responsible for managing and providing leadership to the
Board and the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
execution of the decisions and strategies approved by the
Board, focusing on business development and managing
day-to-day operations of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises one
non-executive Director, namely Ms. HUANG Xue Rong
(Chairlady) and one executive Director, namely Mr. YANG
Ti Wei (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
CHEN Fengliang, Mr. JIANG Hongkai and Mr. TSANG Wah
Kwong. Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is the mother of Mr. YANG
Ti Wei. Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association
of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a specific term of three years, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting pursuant to the Articles of the Company.
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The Board has implemented different ways to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board (the
“Mechanism”). The Board will conduct annual review on
the implementation and effectiveness of the Mechanism
and the results will be presented to the Board which will
collectively discuss the results and the action plan for
improvement, if appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Mechanism and the results were satisfactory.

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. Apart
from the Board meetings, the Board would from time to
time devote separate sessions to consider and review the
Group’s strategy and business activities.

Throughout the year, nine Board meetings were held,
including strategy meetings for several business projects,
meetings discussed matters relating to the re-election of
Directors, as well as reviewed and monitored the financial
and operation performance of the Group. Notice and board
papers were given to all Directors prior to the meetings
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction involving a conflict of interest with a substantial
shareholder or a Director will be considered and dealt
with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company’s Articles contain provisions requiring the
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which
such Directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from the three independent non-executive
Directors. The Company considers that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive,
formal induction to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

The continuous professional development is provided
to the Directors at the Company’s expense to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. From time to time
the Company Secretary updates and provides Directors
with relevant reference material, amendments to Listing
Rules and news releases from the Stock Exchange on
any developments in statutory and regulatory regime to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, all the Directors
have attended 20 hours of training in form of in-house
seminars and regulatory updates or other relevant
reference materials studies.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All Board appointments will be based on
merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service), having due regard
for the benefits of diversity. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

On 26 August 2013, the Board has formally approved a
diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) with effective from
1 September 2013. The Nomination Committee will discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to
the Board for adoption, as set forth in the Diversity Policy of
the Company.
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The members of the Board, who come from a variety of
different backgrounds, have a diverse range of business,
and professional expertise. The table below sets forth an
analysis of the Board’s current composition based on the
measurable objectives:

E=xeXBRETANER  HEZ TN
EBNEENE - TRREIGENERY
EESAAMNERETTOM :

Measurable objective Category Number of Director
AEENEE Al EEAH
Gender Male 4
31l EXL
Female 1
M
Age 20-40 1
FHe 20-40
41-60 3
41-60
Over 60 1
605 £

The composition of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience
and expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. The biographical details of
the Directors are set forth in the “Biographical details of
Directors” section on pages 16 to 18 of this report.

The Board has one female Director, and the Board will
endeavour to at least maintain female representation on the
Board and take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified. As of 31 December 2023, among
the 216 employees (including senior management) of the
Group, the percentages of male employees and female
employees are 63.0% and 37.0%, respectively. The Board
considers that the Group’s workforce (including senior
management) is diverse in terms of gender.
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The Nomination Committee was of the opinion that the
Board consisted of members with diversified gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional/business
experience, skills and knowledge. Further details for the
diversity, including the gender diversity, in the workforce
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set forth in
the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities and professional indemnity insurances
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.
Permitted indemnity provision is currently inforce and was
inforce throughout the year.

In accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has set up an Audit Committee comprising of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
TSANG Wah Kwong (Chairperson), Mr. CHEN Fengliang
and Mr. JIANG Hongkai.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee has been established to review the
financial reporting process and evaluate the effectiveness
of internal control procedures (including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions) of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

REZESRE EFgHEBZ T
Bl Fie EFHER S B EBK
5 - FRREM A AR BARRK - B EE £2023
F12A31BIEFEEIBEZ Tib(BIEER
Zab)MEZFHMER - B2EAR2023F
IRIE - HEMERTRE -

ARRERARAEZRSABERBEE
MEZNSRBEEEIREXAERR - B
R RE R B RATER MR FEAN—BEER °

RIBEEMRBNEI211E - ARFRERILERK
Z8E A=-RBUFNTERENX - D5
RBEREE(IE)  RERTERTER
FEHE o

ERZZEEBFAHGRELMAR - BRE
BevRIUBERNASENYHEREBIE
ReHENMEERRF (BEYE - 2ERAR
BEYE DA R R B B IR B A ) MO B o

37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERRE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit
Committee held three meetings with the management,
external auditor and internal control consultant to discuss
on the Group’s auditing, internal controls and financial
reporting matters, and to review on the Group’s internal
control, special audit, audit planning, the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 and the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2022. with a
recommendation to the Board for approval. The Audit
Committee reviewed and approval of external auditor’s
confirmation of independence, its reports for the Audit
Committee and management representation letters for the
year 2022, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-
appointment of the external auditor at the 2023 AGM. They
also reviewed and considered the scope of work and fee
proposals of the external auditor for the year 2023; and
conducted a high level review of the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems of the Group
(covering financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions) by considering the work
of the management, including a review of the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, and training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that there is an ongoing
process in place for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the Group, and believes
that in order to manage the risk of failure in achieving the
Company’s goals and objectives to an ultimate extent, the
Group should continuously enhance its internal control
system.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, in conjunction with the external auditor, with
a recommendation to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the external
auditor’s work, its independence and objectivity,
and therefore recommended the Board that
PricewaterhouseCoopers be re-appointed as the
Company’s external auditor for the year 2024 subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.
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In accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has set up a Remuneration Committee with
a majority of independent non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. CHEN Fengliang (Chairperson), Mr. JIANG
Hongkai and Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong, all of them are the
independent non-executive Directors and one executive
Director, namely Mr. YANG Ti Wei.

The primary responsibilities of Remuneration Committee
are to provide recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management, reviewing and approving matters related
to share scheme and to establish formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during
the year to discuss on the remuneration package and
the performance assessment of the Directors, and
other remuneration-related matters. All members of the
Remuneration Committee had also deliberated on matters
relating to the salary adjustment of the executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
details of the annual remuneration of the members of the
senior management (excluding Directors) by band for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set forth as follows:

RiEEHRANES2650F - AABERLHE
VIHMTEZRHZBRNTMNEZES - HME
BEeRRENEKE  nHRRERELE(E
B) IR EERBERLEE(DRBIIF
HITESR) UR—RBHTES  BGEER
Ko

FHEZEENIEREAREZTRSRERE
ENFHSENESSRHUEERR B2
ML ERD T EEAEER - URFELERM
BERRRR Fr LAR A RAF BN BOR S 2R 18 -

FNEEERNFARRITT —REZE - UilH
E=mH M58 MR 3E A A M E A F B AR
BEE FHZESE2BRENCHATE
ERBUFRATEEFARSRERABNF
SREREEEETEN

RIECEEARATAUZTANEEEALK &
HEBAB(TEIEES)EH E2023F 12 A31
AIEFEHFMEEFBHIIOT

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
Emolument band B < % &
HKD500,001 — HKD1,000,000 500,001/ 7T % 1,000,000/ 7T 3 1
HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ 72 1,500,000/8 7T 1 3

Details of the Director’s emoluments are set forth in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.
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In accordance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has set up a Nomination Committee with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. JIANG Hongkai (Chairperson) and Mr. TSANG Wah
Kwong, both are the independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director, namely Mr. YANG Ti Wei.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once
a year. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
the review the composition and diversity of the Board
regularly, to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and to make recommendation to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
reappointment of Directors. The Nomination Committee
firstly proposes a list of candidates for selection, which
shall then be submitted by the committee to the Board for
review and approval. In respect of the selected candidates,
the Nomination Committee collects their background
information and examine the qualifications in accordance
with the applicable requirements and to state their opinion
and recommendations on appointments to the Board. The
Nomination Committee carries out, if necessary, other
relevant follow up works according to the decisions of or
feedback from the Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting and made recommendation to the Board for the
review of the structure, size and composition of the Board,
including the independence of the three independent non-
executive Directors and the diversity structure of the Board.
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1= B /A =
Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received B FMBENESR - AATFIEESEMNE
a written confirmation from each of the independent non- VIEHTESMNERER  BREBHRAE
executive Directors of his independence to the Group. The SEEMBILME o KRBIRAEMEBYIEANTT
Company considers all of the independent non-executive EEHUBURAER -

Directors to be independent with respect to the Group.

The attendance record of each of the Directors for the HZE2023F12A31HIEFEREITEZNS
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2023 is EFHEREHIAT
set forth below:

Number of attendance/Number of meetings

SELE/ETRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors EEd General Board  Committee = Committee  Committee

BRAE Exg EnzZEee ¥Mzee R%ZE8e
Non-executive Director FHTES
HUANG Xue Rong (Chairiady) BEER(TELT) 1/1 9/9 NATER N/ATER N/ATE R
Executive Director HTES
YANG Ti Wei (Deputy Chairman) GRE(EEE) 11 9/9 N/ATEF 11 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors FUFHTES
CHEN Fengliang 3 1/1 9/9 3/3 1/1 N/ATER
JIANG Hongkai 1ER 11 9/9 3/3 11 11
TSANG Wah Kwong B 1N 9/9 3/3 il 11
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The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The
recommendation and declaration of dividends are
subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board shall
take into account various factors the Board may deem
relevant, including but not limited to the Group’s actual
and expected financial performance, working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
commitments, operations and business strategies, liquidity
position, retained earnings and distributable reserves, etc.,
and market conditions and external factors.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and regulations and the Articles.
The Board will review such policy as appropriate from time
to time.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment in respect of annual and
interim reports, announcements of inside information and
other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial period, which give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group at the
end of the financial year and profit or loss for the financial
year. The Directors have prepared the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Company has used appropriate accounting
policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates, and that all
applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The Directors are not aware that any material or significant
exposures exist, other than as reflected in this report.
The Directors therefore have a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The
financial statements are continually prepared on a going
concern basis.
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The internal audit department of the Group has reported
its findings and work plan to the Audit Committee twice
in a year, and the Board and the Audit Committee then
reviewed and refined the Group’s material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. The enhancement of the
internal control measures will continue to be monitored
by the internal audit department and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The internal audit department will
periodically report their review and findings on the internal
controls of the Group to the Audit Committee and the
Board.

The Board, together with the Audit Committee, also
accessed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their
training programs and budget.

Through the internal audit department, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Based on the results of the internal control review for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and the assessment of the
Audit Committee thereon, no significant deficiency in risk
management and internal controls systems are noted. The
Board therefore is satisfied that appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems have been
maintained for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code as set forth in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiries with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard of dealings as set forth in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Independent Auditor’s Report issued by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, in
respect of the audit of the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set forth on pages 47
to 57 of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the auditor’s
remuneration was RMB2.35 million and RMBO0.8 million for
audit services and other assurance services to the Group
respectively.

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board
approval. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable to the Board
for matters relating to the duties of the Directors, such as
by giving advice on corporate governance developments.
All members of the Board have access to the advice and
service of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
also plays an essential role in the relationship between
the Company and its shareholders, including assisting
the Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. CHOW Chun Pong is the Company Secretary.
Mr. CHOW is a full-time employee of the Group. During
the year, Mr. CHOW has complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Article 58 of the Articles of the Company,
any one or more members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company, on a one vote per
share basis, shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business or
resolution specified in such requisition. The Shareholders
may communicate to the Board any enquiries they may
have. All Shareholders correspondences received by the
Company will be delivered to the Company Secretary for
an initial review. The Company Secretary will maintain a
log of the correspondences and forward a copy of the
correspondences to the Board for consideration at its next
meeting.

Apart from the above, Shareholders also have the right
to nominate candidates to be Directors. Following the
relevant procedures which are made available to the
Shareholders, Shareholders may at any time send a notice
of nomination setting out the information required to the
Nomination Committee of the Company. After evaluation,
the Nomination Committee may make recommendation to
the Board which will then evaluate the nomination.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Share
Registrar, Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited.
Shareholders and the investment community may at any
time make a request for the Company’s information to the
extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders may make enquiries to the Board in writing
to the Company Secretary at the office of the Company
at Unit C2, 30/F, TG Place, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also make
enquiries with the Board at the general meeting.
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The Company believes that effective communication
with Shareholders is essential for good investor relations
and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. Therefore, the Company
always seeks to provide relevant information through
various channels including formal announcements and
conferences, analysts presentations and roadshows
and forums organised by investment banks in order
to enhance the transparency and communication with
the investing public. The Company has established a
shareholders communication policy. The Board reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders
communication policy and the results were satisfactory.

The Company endeavoured to disclose all material
information about the Group to all interested parties as
widely and as timely as possible. The Company also
maintains a website at www.shirble.net, where up-to-
date information and updates on the Company’s financial
information, business development and other information
are available for public access. The general meetings of the
Company provide a platform for communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Board and the senior
management will normally attend the annual general
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
to answer questions raised at the meetings. The Board
maintained an on-going dialogue with the shareholders
and answered all questions raised by the shareholders
throughout the last AGM held on 26 June 2023.

During the year, the Company has made changes to its
constitutional documents to be in line with the latest legal
and regulatory requirements, including the applicable laws
of the Cayman Islands and the amendments made to
Appendix A1 to the Listing Rules which took effect on 1
January 2022. The adoption of the amended and restated
articles of association of the Company had obtained
shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting
held on 26 June 2023. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 21 April 2023 and
the circular of the Company dated 28 April 2023.

The Company’s constitutional documents is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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To the Shareholders of Shirble Department Store FREREER(PE)ERATREK
Holdings (China) Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (RESHETMETAERE)

The consolidated financial statements of Shirble HEAEER(FER)AERARI(ATEEIE
Department Store Holdings (China) Limited (the AR REWBRARIATHBE E£H )7
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are HNEL8E205 B MR A M BmE - B -

set out on pages 58 to 205, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December e N-E-_ZF+-_A=Z1+—HHNEGEEE
2028; EREXR:

o the consolidated income statement for the year then o HZEZBILEFERGAEKER
ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income o HEZHIFEMGZEEZEWGRE

for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for o HEZHIEFEMGAEREERX
the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year o HEZHIFENGARERER X
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, o MAEMBHMERN:G  BEERSITHER

comprising material accounting policy information EENEMBEER -
and other explanatory information.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

We draw attention to Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated
financial statements, which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately RMB350 million during
the year ended 31 December 2023 and, as of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB427 million. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately
RMB556 million, of which secured bank borrowings of
RMB254 million is in default, while the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB50
million. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition
to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related
to Going Concern section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

BREFFASREAMANERHE  RA
AR BERERNBEARREENSTIA
EULERRERMBFBREEMBHRERNL
HEABRFETREN - RMATSHELSE
HEREEBNER - RE [ EBECEAHN
ERTHEEE B2 PR ERIN - HFIETE
THEEARMBSTHEEEBNHEREN
=R -

BAMEERT P AR R ET FEBM T

follows:

° Valuation of investment properties

° Impairment of receivables from operating leases and °

amount due from a related party

o WEWMERME

REMERWFARBKR —REEL R
THERE

Key Audit Matter
BREFTER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN BTN EERRENSE

Valuation of investment properties

REWEME

Refer to note 2.1.6, note 3.3, note 4(b) and note 14 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
FELRRAMERERNME2.1.6 ~ H5E3.3 » MizE4(b)
KHFsE14 ©

The Group’s investment properties were measured
at fair value of approximately RMB1,798 million
as at 31 December 2023, with a fair value loss of
approximately RMB156 million charged to profit or
loss for the year then ended.

20235 12H31H - ERERBEMERATENBA
R¥1,798BBTHE - Hh - RBEZBLEFE - ©
BalBRn R FTEEENAARKIS6EET
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We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of valuation
of investment properties and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity,
changes and susceptibility to management bias or
fraud, and performed audit procedures as follows:
BMTRERBHIREMEMENA I ZEHMT(HB
2 WiE R E R T8 N HEE 2 R M E 0 [E A B g E
K RN FBMN  BEBNEEEENRA
FEFFR BN - TR EARERNERRR - WETT
A TEEF

o We validated the internal control over the fair
value of investment properties;

s HMBRETESEETRAEAVELATENHANIE
BERT
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Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMEERREENSHE

The Group’s investment property portfolio includes
self-owned buildings which are held for long-term
rental yields and the right-of-use assets for property
leases which had been or planned to be subleased
out under operating leases. The management has
engaged an independent valuer to assist in the
valuation of the fair value of investment properties.
EEENREAYEAGLERESRAAS WEME
EHEEYME  UREEKFERELHEHETHHEDN
MERERATAREE - BEELZEBE L (LER
MEREMERNTFEZEE -

We focused on the area because the estimation of
valuation of investment properties is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk in
relation to the valuation of investment properties is
considered relatively higher due to complexity of the
methods, subjectivity of significant assumptions used,
and significant judgements involved in selecting data.
Given the significant balance of investment properties
and the involvement of significant judgements and
assumptions, the valuation of investment properties is
considered a key audit matter.
HRREMENGREAEXRNSRENGETETE
M AR MERBTZEE c PREREMEMLED
BEERRE AR - AAEEM  FITANEARZA
TEMN  UREBRBURR P REKRHE - ERREY
FEEEKR BSRERABGNRER - SIREMED
HERAERETEIE -
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o We evaluated the independent external valuer’s
independence, professional qualifications and
relevant experience in the markets where the
Group’s investment properties are located and
obtained their valuation reports prepared for
financial reporting purposes;

e  HMFAGBTHEIIMNEGMEM BN FEER
ER BEEBEREMEMGEMISEBLR I
BISHE RV RMMRE C MERS

o We performed the following procedures with the
assistance of our internal valuation experts:

o  HMEABEEZERNHE NETT NIRRT

(1)  We evaluated the appropriateness and
consistency of methodologies used in
the property valuations based on our
knowledge of the industry and market
practice;

REBEHRMABTRRTHENN 2R - FM
A TOERERATERGRE -5

(2) We challenged the reasonableness of
the key assumptions adopted in the
property valuations by comparing them to
recent lettings of the Group’s investment
properties, actual occupancy rates
achieved, recent market transactions;
BB BEEEREVMELHEMEE
Ao BREREX  EBMMISERS - KME
RTYEGRETARAZETEZERERNSIE
M
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Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMEERREENSHE

Impairment of receivables from operating leases
and amount due from a related party

REHERYEAEREYR - SBELRENRE

Refer to note 2.1.8(d), note 3.1(b), note 4(c) and
(d), note 21(b) and note 35(e)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

ELHGRE VB MENE2.1.8(d) ~ FTEES.1(0) * FTFE
4(c) K (d) ~ FIEE21 () KR M 7E35(e) (i) °

The gross balance of receivables from operating
leases and amount due from a related party as at 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB30
million and RMB336 million, against which allowance
for expected credit losses amounting to approximately
RMB8 million and RMB336 million was charged for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

2023F12 8310 - KEHERWHIE R Y —2 R
EHRIENBERNRARKEIOBEE TR ARK336
BB REE2023F12A31 A EFEHELD
ARBBEETRARKICHBETHNEREAEER
# o
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° We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the valuation input data on
existing leases by agreeing the rental income
and lease terms to the signed lease agreements;
and
RBLLHESWARBHREEZRITZ2HERZ
BAHREHEMERE T M ERABUIRN LR
MR AERENE &

° We checked the calculation of the fair value of
the investment properties for accuracy.
BMRETREMELFETEERN

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in the assessment of valuation of investment
properties were supportable by the evidence obtained
and procedures performed.

ER b ZARREEEETHRREMEMLE
e P e R e FI BT SRR - FEPTIS S BAATEITHIIR
PR -

We obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment process of
impairment of receivables from operating leases and
amount due from a related party and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud, and
performed audit procedures as follows:
BMTHRTERBHREHERKFIARER —HH
B RIBAREERNIZEH T ERIE - WEBRER
HET A EEREMEME AR RREZRKF - niEH
M FHM  EFHNMEIRERMRFFABRML
MhEAREBOEERRE - WETUTERT
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Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMEERREENSHE

Management elected to apply the simplified approach
by adopting a provision matrix to measure the
lifetime expected loss allowance for receivables
from operating leases. In calibrating the provision
matrix, management used judgement in making the
assumptions about the expected credit loss rate
with reference to the historical observed rates and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors. In addition, management also reviewed
the credit risk of individual tenants by considering
relationship with them and their financial position, etc.
to assess whether any increase in credit risk which
may trigger further specific provision at the end of the
reporting period.

EREERRAMLTE KATEEEREASLSE
HERKFIENZHANEERE  EAREBEER
B EREEZ2ETRERINEENEBRLCERERN
RIEER  ARAEBENERERAEREXNHRE -
o - BERETEREMNBLHNERERE  EREE
BENBEERMBTBARRSE - U EERRR — B
n SEERERERARBET LT TEE -
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° We validated the key internal controls over the
impairment of receivables from operating leases
and amount due from a related party;

BAPIBRAE T ¥ 48 2 10 & WK A K e Uy — & &
77 RIE R B B R BRI

° We tested, on a sample basis, the aging report
of receivables from operating leases;
BAAHET R AR T KL HEERYEGIANER

e

o We examined key terms of the termination and
supplementary agreements in relation to the
amount due from a related party and checked
the accuracy of the information used in the
valuation;

BMeE T BN — R REIE T FIB B AR LA
FIHBBERGR  WiRE T HEMAEENE
T

° We evaluated the independent external valuer’s
independence, professional competence
and relevant experience in the impairment
assessment of receivables and inspected their
valuation report prepared for financial reporting
purposes;

BATRTAS T B SNIE (i (B AD B B R IR B BT 14
FEZBYM  BEEENREELR  TRET
RERTERBATRBNEERS

o We challenged management for the
assumptions and data used in assessing the
expected credit loss rate with the assistance of
our internal valuation experts;
ERMHABEEERNHT - HAERTE
BECHTHERERABEELERITANBRKE
%

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F[E# 4



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B R E

Key Audit Matter
BREIEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETOMEERREENSHE

Management assessed the expected credit losses
of amount due from a related party based on
assumptions about risk of default, expected credit
loss rates and whether there has been any significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition for the
receivable. Management has engaged an independent
valuer to assist in the impairment assessment of
amount due from a related party. Management used
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
cumulative historical recovery rate, credit rating as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

RIBEARR  FAHRERBRER B EKFIAEZVHE
RERBAEMBZEMEARBRNRKRE - EEET
HEN—EZREFRBENTEREREE - EEECR
78 — 45 98 Sk (B R 199 BN T Bk B e W — 4 B 5 BRIA Y
WMERE - BEREEEHELEREMERREFEN
BARNFEBRERZGFELEWE - ERARRES
B ¥R S HIREY AT R MR 52 -

We focused on the area because the estimation
of the expected credit losses is subject to high
degree of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to impairment assessment of receivables
from operating leases and amount due from a related
party is considered relatively higher due to subjectivity
of significant assumptions used and significant
judgements involved in selecting data. Given the
significant balance of receivables from operating
leases and amount due from a related party and the
involvement of significant management’s judgements
and estimates, the provision for expected credit
losses on receivables from operating leases and
amount due from a related party is considered a key
audit matter.
HREMERBENMAFTFERRTHEEE - At
MEHEITZEE - ARAERNEARKRARE
Bt BEZEBIEERSRERHE  BHARRKE
HERKFIARER —BBEES FRIBERENLOHESR
FEfzEERE  ERKLEERKFEARER -2
BHFIABKRERN - BSREREREN A6 X E
BT REHERKRIARER —BEES RIANTES
EREERERRABREENZE -
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o We interviewed management to corroborate
their explanations on the doubtful receivable
balances on a sample basis to evaluate whether
any increase in credit risk which may trigger
further specific provision;

BASATERRE - MBORE K S 5 AT & & YGR
HERNERE - AT REHREMERRRIE
I AT BEAE B HE — DR R B

o We checked the calculation of the expected
credit losses of receivables for accuracy; and
BMeE TRYGRIENERE S BB Er R
R

° We compared, on a sample basis, the
subsequent collection with the original
estimation to evaluate the reliability and
accuracy of significant managment’s
judgements and estimates in the impairment
assessment.

BAUHEAR - BiBEERRERYIGE 2L
B HME T EEEEER @RER G R B R
FTHY AT SR R EERE N o

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions applied
in the impairment assessment of receivables from
operating leases and amount due from a related
party were supportable by the evidence obtained and
procedures performed.

EREXfat - HARAREEEELLHEERKFIA
Ko R K — 45 B 32 75 R T ARG (B AT A6t B T E PR Y 1 B B
BR - EFBIEBENABEITNRFFEE R -
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

56

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Au Chi Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

o HESKAMBHMANBREIBIN - &
BAIAR  BEKE UNKEHBR
REETERBEBRZHMERE -

s HESEAERBIEBEBNUKES
ERGtE BEMNELRE  UEHER
EUBHmERBERER - RMBEEEE
BATOOIR - BT - HAIAESR
ERAEZEE -

FREMERIN  RMAREZZEQBRT A
FMBETHRE BHETYE BEXEFZER
% - BRBMERF BRI LR EBE G E
fa] B ABRFE -

BHERNEZZESRIEH  HARME
NEAMBLMENERERERER Y&
PBEBEEREA R ERAETERME
MUHERFEREMEMEIE  UREERN
BRT - BAERE B EELERENITE
SHEREREV SR 1 ©

HHEEZZESBBNERD  HMAETH
LERHAREGAWBERRNBIAZR/E
2 AMEXBRESEE - RAOEZHED
WERHIMBLEE - RIPERIVERT A
MARRBEESLESTH  JERRERLNER
T REEERERMRSTEBRER
ERNEERRBBEEN AR M - R
RENEERSETBBZEER -

AEUZHMRENEFREARAR

o

=

/1

m EE

hiigad
S

BERKEST A EHA
HE ST ED

F& - 2024%F3H28H

57



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue
Other operating revenue
Other losses — net

Fair value loss on investment properties
Purchase of and changes in inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Net impairment losses on financial assets
Net impairment losses on prepayment

Other operating expenses — net

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs
Finance costs — net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Losses per share for the loss
attributable to owners of the
Company (expressed in RMB
per share)

— Basic losses per share

— Diluted losses per share

The above consolidated statement of income should be

e R

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M et ARET ARBFIT
WA 6 190,666 191,576
H b A 7 29,886 31,966
H b8 558 8 (27,157) (284,262)
"EMEN AT EEE 14 (156,004) (221,877)
FERERE 9,22 (6,667) (5,196)
EERAMEZ 9,70 (34,127) (50,740)
TE R HMAY 9 (3,632) (13,601)
SREENREREFE 9 (204,492) (157,210
B RMREEEFE 9 (62,950) =
H b4 S FRE 9 (81,861) (86,058)
B EE (356,338) (595,402)
BEWA 11 18,476 10,737
BhE R AN 11 (68,642) (84,598)
BhE KA F B 11 (50,166) (73,861)
MRS HATEE (406,504) (669,263)
i > 12 56,095 112,769
FEEIE (350,409) (556,494)
JE(LEIE -
KARER A (340,982) (556,117)
FEfE R (9,427) (377)
(350,409) (556,494)
RATEE AEMN
BEz2ERER
(UERARYESIE)
—SREKREIE 13(a) (0.14) (0.22)
—SREESE 13(b) (0.14) (0.22)
iR e W R EE BT — 6 -

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEzHEHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Loss for the year FEFR (350,409) (556,494)
Other comprehensive loss Hih2HEEER
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss — AJGLEZ 5 M= 1575098 H
Currency translation differences INEEHE =R (2,185) (4,869)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss & E #3482 187 4918 B
Change in fair value of investment properties #8532 B: 35 & ) 2 N (H Y
upon transfer, net of tax B (MRTIR) 20,654 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEHM2EKE (FE)
for the year 18,469 (4,869)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHEBALE (331,940) (561,363)
Attributable to: PEAL :
Owners of the Company KARHEA A (322,513) (560,986)
Non-controlling interests FEERR (9,427) (377)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FER2HEBEAR (331,940) (561,363)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive titGE WS R EREE T REE -

income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEERER

As at 31 December 2023

60

202312 431H

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MtaF AR¥T T AREET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREEE
Investment properties wEME 14 1,798,132 1,685,247
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 15 26,124 199,784
Intangible assets BAE 16 322 497
Deferred income tax assets BLEFSHEE 19 2,236 42,001
Trade receivables, other receivables B SR GIE - HAt
and prepayments EWFIERBEMNRE 27 120,397 247,938
1,947,211 2,175,467
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 3,032 3,128
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRSR
profit or loss BE 20 4,350 4,288
Trade receivables, other receivables B 5 EWGRIA - HAivfE
and prepayments WeskIE R TR RIB 21 65,062 271,979
Properties held for sale HHEME 23 254,000 350,000
Deferred income tax assets BEEFSHEE 19 1,594 -
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHRITER 24 17,045 16,870
Cash and cash equivalents BelMReEEY 25 50,127 77,954
395,210 724,219
Total assets wEE 2,342,421 2,899,686
EQUITY R
Share capital & A 26 213,908 213,908
Share premium IR0 =8 26 750,992 750,992
Other reserves Him 27 458,241 439,772
Accumulated losses Z25tEE 28 (637,294) (296,312)
Equity attributable to the owners AATEE AEERER
of the Company 785,847 1,108,360
Non-controlling interests FERER - 8,151
Total equity B 785,847 1,116,511
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERER

As at 31 December 2023
M2023%F12HA31H

2023 2022
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARBT T AR¥ETTT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Lease liabilities HERE 29 590,432 633,660
Deferred income tax liabilities BT ARE 19 80,394 85,867
Borrowings B 32 63,333 266,361
734,159 985,388
Current liabilities REEE
Lease liabilities HERE 29 53,681 58,186
Trade and other payables 8 5 N HE b FERT RIE 30 126,777 185,653
Contract liabilities aHAaE 31 28,136 31,110
Borrowings EEIN 32 493,140 319,697
Income tax payable FERTPTISEL 120,681 202,641
822,415 797,287
Total liabilities BEHAE 1,556,574 1,783,175
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 2,342,421 2,899,686
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in LG EEBERERAEM T —HEE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The financial statements on pages 58 to 205 were F58FE2058 VIS RABESEEMN2024FE3
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and BogAH#LETH TIESRKEREE -
were signed on its behalf.
HUANG Xue Rong YANG Ti Wei
BEER o rik
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HZE2023F12A31BILFE

Balance as at 1 January 2023

Comprehensive loss
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Revaluation of property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment
properties, net of tax

Currency translation differences (Note 27)

Total comprehensive loss

Transaction with owners
Disposal of subsidiaries

Total transactions with owners

Balance as at 31 December 2023

62

202351418

2AER
EERR
A2 EEE
ERERANRE
n% - BERREN
INSEERICIES )
B S (Mior)
A2 EERAR

REEANRS
EENHBAR

RERANRAAE

R2023E128318

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATEE NEL
Non-

Share Share Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves losses Total interests equity
kx  REEE  HitkE  ZHEE it FEREsR BEs
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARET:R
213908 750,992 439,772 (296,312) 1,108,360 8,151 1,116,511
- - - (340,982  (340,982) (9,427)  (350,409)

- - 20,654 - 20,654 - 20,654

- - (2,185) - (2,185) - (2,185)

- - 18,469  (340,982)  (322,513) (9,427)  (331,940)

- - - - - 1,276 1,276

- - - - - 1,276 1,276
213908 750,992 458,241  (637,204) 785847 - 785847
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEDBER
s AN B

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
HZE2022F12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAELE
Shares Retained
held for profit/ Non-
Share Share  share award Other  (accumulated controling Total
capital  premium scheme reserves losses) Total interests equity
AR
KRl &R/

BE BOEE HENRG  EtEE  (ZHER) & FERES S
RMBOOO  RMB'0O0  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTRL ARRTR ARMTL ARMTL ARETR ARETR ARETL ARETR

Balance as at 1 January 2022 R2022%1F18 213908 750,992 (214) 444855 259,805 1,609,346 8528 1,677,874
Comprehensive loss 2AER
Loss for the year EEEE S S = - BRB117) (556,117) (377)  (556,494)

Other comprehensive loss A2 EER
Ourrency franslation differences  MEHEEE ([itzo7)

Note 27) - - S e S8 S8
Total comprehensive loss A2 EHREE = - - (4,869)  (656,117)  (560,986) 377)  (561,363)
Transaction with owners RERANR S
Employees’ share award scheme: B R(A #E3HE -

- Disposal of shares held for shared ~ —2 £41R 178

award schemes ek - - 214 - - 214 - 214
- Forfeiting of shares ~-HEZRH S S S (214) = (214) - (214)
Total transactions with owners ~ EFE ANR 545 - - 214 (214) - - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2022 1420225125318 213,908 750,992 - 439772 (296,312 1,108,360 8,151 1,116,511
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity LR A SR EEE T —OBIE -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

Cash flows from operating activities R& ZEELNWRESFTE

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for purchases of property,
plant and equipment and
investment properties

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVPL

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Principal elements of finance lease
payment received

Interest elements of finance lease
payment received

(Increase)/Decrease in restricted
bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash generated from
investing activities

64

REABMRE
B

RETFHRENREFE

REFHELENRERE
BEDE  BER
REARIRE
MR
BEBLEE
B ERABRRIIRZ
& & BE E RS
HEME - BEM&E
B TS 78
EUWEEEHE R
M ARNE JE D
EUWEE B HE R
B A S 5B
R HERITER
(1&10),/m
EUF B

REFHRENREEFE

Note
MfaF

33(a)

33(b)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTT
106,522 141,912
106,522 141,912
(5,992) (6,702)

- (340)

- 54,123

67 31,142

24,147 17,182
8,858 10,132
(297) 3,994

1,144 695
27,927 110,226
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Interests paid

Principal elements of lease payments

as the lessee

Interest elements of lease payments

as the lessee

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of year

Effect of changes in foreign

exchange rate

Cash and cash equivalents

at end of year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

METHELENRESRE

CENZIEEE/NE]

BB AR

ERHE

ERABEABRENK
RN :1Pa

ERABARENK

oplpsR:ib)

BMEFHTANEEFE

RERREEEY
(BD),HEmEHR
FNREMREFEY

RS TINEZ

FRATSRASEEY

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Note
MfaF

25

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETF T
36,172 54,820
(65,757) (125,613)
(30,330) (38,328)
(68,848) (76,563)
(33,228) (46,286)
(161,991) (231,970)
(27,542) 20,168
77,954 58,164
(285) (378)
50,127 77,954

bR A R RERERENFE—H5E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

66

Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 5 November 2008 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
department stores operations, and property
development in The People’s Republic of China (“the
PRC”).

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) on 28 March 2024.

REABEER(FBARAA(AR
A1) R2008F 11 ASHIREFAEHS
EPIERERREEREFSTMK
SNAEREERAR  HAMHEED
H ik & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.0.Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands °

RAREBREREERES - AR
REMBRR(5HE [ AEEDHEEE
BRRPEARKEME(HE])ETE
EERENFHEER -

RABBDNETEBMERZABRA
AlERLET -

BRBEAIN  ZEFEMBERERAA
RETAREDIIE -

ZESZ AP EHRERN2024F3 A28 B &
EEg(([ESgDIAETE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

This note provides a list of the material and other
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1.1 Basis of preparation

(@) Compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”)

The consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS
and requirements of HKCO Cap.
622.

(b) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for
investment property and financial
assets at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVPL”), which are carried at
fair value.

(c) Going concern basis

For the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group recorded a loss
of approximately RMB350 million
and a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately
RMB341 million. As at 31 December
20283, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB427 million.
The Group had a total of RMB556
million in bank borrowings, of which
RMB493 million were current bank
borrowings. In November 2023, the
Group failed to repay a bank loan
of RMB254 million that is secured
by the Group’s properties held for
sale. The Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB50
million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= g T S

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

Since 2022, the Group planned to
sell its property held for sales to
repay the abovementioned bank
loan of RMB254 million. However,
its disposal plan has been adversely
affected by the prevailing weak
sentiment in the real estate market.
Due to the downward pressure on
the real estate sector, the Group has
not yet disposed of the properties
held for sale, which has led to its
default in repaying the bank loan.

The above conditions indicated the
existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast a significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

In view of such circumstances,
the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity
and operating performance of the
Group and its available sources of
financing to assess whether the
Group will have sufficient financial
resources to fulfil its financial
obligations to continue as a going
concern. The plans and measures
have been taken to mitigate the
liquidity pressure and to improve its
financial position, including but not
limited to the following:

211 RBEE(E)

(c)

RFESEER(E)

H2022F 8 » AEEH
FELEFHEMEL
BE FRBITERAR
o564 B ETT ° AT
HHEHFERIEE
MHEAERIFERT
FIFE - AREHETT
E¥TTEN  AEEN
REEFLEWE &
BUAHARR BT M A (BB IR
TER -

FRBRRREEEA
THT - AR A
B EGEE N EE
EARE -

BERLE - NRARES
(TEx)CEEZEAR
SENARKRBES R
RERBREATZ AR
EHRR - AsHEAEE
EEARRYEERE
TEHERERERLER
MISEE - EFRIER
BN 1% BE ) M2 B A
RARET MGG - &
BETRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Going concern basis (continued)

(i)

(i

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

Regarding the defaulted
loan which was pledged
by a property held for sale
project, given there was no
other guarantee provided
by the Group, based on the
legal opinion provided by
a PRC lawyer, the Group
performed assessment
and believe that there is no
impact to the Group’s other
major operations. The Group
continues its plan to actively
seek for buyers to dispose of
the properties held for sale and
is confident that the Group
will be able to disposal of the
properties held for sale at least
at its carrying value of RMB254
million in the coming year to
repay the default bank loans.
At the same time, the Group
will continue to negotiate with
the bank to extend the bank
loans as well as granting grace
period for the Group to seek for
buyers;

As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had secured borrowings
of RMB232 million repayable
in 2024. Subsequent to the
year end, the Group has
successfully renewed these
borrowings with new facilities
for a term of 3-7 years;

211 RBEE(E)

(c)

FEREER(E)

(i)

(ii

HRFHEDE
HEEWHKRE
BER  ERXA
SERERMHE
il JE R - RIE—
%R B R A A
MEREERE
REBETTF
HRABABHAE
EEMEIBEXRK
THEEZE - K
SEFENEE
BERERLE
FHEME - I
BELDREEA
ELARE254
BSTHIREE
EHEFLED
XREEXREE
MIRITER © A
ISR LT T:
BERTHREIT
RBITER - ¥
RTYTAEESK
BEXRNRRY

R2023F 12 A31
H A&EBAR
2024 FBEEME
BEREZXARE
232 /BT o R
FEE  A&EHE
BRI EBRZE
KR FAS R
BI3ETE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fal= g T S

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

(i)  The Group will continue to
implement plans and measures
to improve the operation
performance of the department
store business to generate
operating cash inflow;

(iv)  The Group will continue to
secure new banking facilities
to provide further funding for
the Group’s operation, as and
when needed. Management
believes that the Group will be
able to obtain new banking
facilities with the Group’s
assets which are available to
be pledged as security. The
Group will also consider to
further dispose of other assets
to generate more cash inflows,
as and when needed.

The Directors have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow projections,
which cover not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2023.
In the opinion of the Directors, in
light of the above and taking into
account the anticipated cash flows
to be generated from the Group’s
operations as well as the above
plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient financial resources
to satisfy its future working capital
requirements as and when they
fall due in the coming twelve
months from 31 December 2023.
Accordingly, the Directors consider
that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.

2ANRBEE(E)

(c)

FESEER(E)

iy AEEBEEE
BN EREER
B A B
ME\HEAEER
EmA

vy EFZEH X&
B E RS
RIRTTIHRE KA
ﬁ$%@mw
RHEE—FE
& o B IEE A
2 NEEBEE
% LA 72N £2 (& 7] A
EEENEEE
BEHAE TR
E-BRER -
AEEBTSEE
E—SHEHM
BENELESRZ
BEBIHERA o

EEDEMLIAEER
SRETEN  RES
20234 12 A 31 H #£
+—EAMEME - EE
RA - ERLEERLR
ZERIBAERZEM
BHEHESR UKk
EAETEIFIEE - A%
BEigE RN EER
Kim R HE B2023F 12
A31 B KRR+ =
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It EERBERKLE
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LA EERE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c) Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, a
material uncertainty exists as to
whether the Group is able to achieve
its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon the Group’s
ability to generate adequate cash
flows through:

(i)

(ii

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

Successful disposal of the
properties held for sale, and
collection of sales proceeds
to satisfy the repayment of
the defaulted secured bank
borrowings of RMB254 million
and successful negotiation with
the bank to extend the bank
borrowings and to grant longer
grace period for the Group’s to
seek for buyers;

Successful implementation
of the plans and measures
to improve the operation
performance of the department
store business to generate
operating cash inflow;

Successful in obtaining
new banking facilities and/
or generate cash inflow from
disposal of the Group’s assets,
as and when needed.

211 RBEE(E)

(c)

RFESEER(E)

EENL - AEEES
BH bt et EIME T
BHEEATHEMYE - K
FEESHELE BRI
ARAEBRBIATH
XEEFR TR EMAAL
alE

i) HMHEEFEE
7 E SN Tk
ERSRIENE
ERAEENER
BIRITERAR
W 254 B & T
K AR T ER R 1T 13
i E K R IT G
Ko WBmTARE
BERSKER
RERAR

iy EIHEREAR
BEBKEER
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iy E2EFER - KD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Going concern basis (continued)

Should the Group be unable to
achieve the above plans and
measures such that it would not be
able to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide
for further financial liabilities which
might arise with higher interest
rate, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected
in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and amended standards
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
new standard and amendments to
existing standards for the first time
for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2023:

IFRS 17
BIBR B 75 R & YE RSB 1798
Amendments to IAS 12

BIFR & R E 1258 IS ET
Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2
BIFR &5 2RI 155 &

BB B 75 ¥ & A B B 75 A
E25RMMEET

Amendments to IAS 8

BIFR &5t ERI E 8RS ET

211 RBEE(E)
(c) IHELEEME)

EAKREERIER bt
&I RfEE - MEHA
SEBEXFELE 8
FETHE - SAEE
BEMKREEERES
Halem &80 - AEA]
RE-—TEANRERS
MERAE - WHER
BHEEMFERBAESD
AEDBERRBEEM
MEAIE - BLHEN
TETRRBELRS B
BT ERRT -

(d) AEBEEHRMBIE R

REIERT A

REBER2023F1 A1
A F 1A 8 F [E w4 HAfE
HIXERTAIFER &
HEERMER]

Insurance Contracts

Riza &

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

HE-—QHEHLZEENBEERZRIEMER

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SETBERNKE

Definition of Accounting Estimates

SR AETER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

211 RBEEE)

(e) New and amended standards not yet () MAREMBETE] RS

2.1.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

adopted

Certain new standards and
amendments to existing standards
have been published that are not
mandatory in current year and

nT piz /H\U

B9 B ET RATIE T A

AR 518 T IF R A
EHSIER  AAEE
A 42 41 R ©

have not been early adopted by the
Group.

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RTFIRSR 2%
Bz EEHMER

Amendments to IAS 1
BB e ERE1RNET

Classification of Liabilities as Gurrent or Non-current

RENBARDIRD

January 1, 2024
2024F1R1A

Amendments to IAS 1
AR e ERE1R0B

Non-current liabilities with covenants

HERE FRDRE

January 1, 2024
202451710

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier finance arrangements
Rt EARTH R  HEERARH
IR R R ETRAOET

January 1, 2024
2024F1R1A

Amendments to IFRS 16
B S KRS E165RME]

Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

ERBEHERRE

January 1, 2024
202451010

Amendments to IAS 21
GillS- e EVAL )

Lack of exchangeability
W2 AR

January 1, 2025
20251410

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor No mandatory effective date

and IAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture yet determined but

available for adoption
ERMBRREEAFE 10 R REAEEBUARARE L EELEARA RAHEE R AR A
Bl &t B Z 085 )18 E] BRIERA it

The above new standards and

LRI R R HIRA

amendments to existing standards
are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2024
and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated
financial statements. None of these
is expected to have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

AR HHERT Y2024 F 1
A1B#%RABNFE
R WARTE R BAER
BV EHMKRFER - 78
Hﬂi%ﬁ@J SHAE
ijA%ﬁﬁ%%%

73



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group
(note 2.1.3).

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the
results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 212G A REZETEZER
accounting (continued) (&)

(b)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence
but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights
and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangement and determined
it to be joint venture. Investments in
joint venture are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(d)

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of
accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the
group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received
or receivable from the equity-
accounted investments are
recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the equity-
accounted investments.

When the Group’s share of losses
in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

(d)

Equity accounting (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions

212 EREFETEZREE

(%)

(d)

e Ny

MR

8

HR(E)

REBEHE AR AR

between the Group and the ZIEETHNR S ATE
equity-accounted investments AR R IR Yz TR AR

are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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The carrying amount of equity- NEZARZIEERN
accounted investments is tested for BR B Ty AR B 7 BT 5

impairment in accordance with the
policy described in note 2.1.8.

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (continued)

()

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. It means the
amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRS.

212 EREFETEZREE

(%)

(f)

LR)=PNEIlE0)4:

EAKETBREAES
B EEBTRES
EfESEEEREE
HEE B R FEEHN
B NRESENE
BEt AR - IR
SERBERE - 5%
EEINEREEETR
BARE - UAFER
RREE - s 2
AR AR & Y as P 3l
ZEREIANTASHE
BERASRBEEREE
MHRAEEKBBEARK -
ERRZAEEMES
Wk HER N SRS
ERUPECES Sk Y
EEAN BRI ERE
RARE RIS —

s
FErER o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F[E# 4



2.1.3 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations,
regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the
acquiree, the equity interest issued by the
Group, the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and fair value of any pre-
existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
those amounts are less than the fair value
of the net assets of the business acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.3 Business combinations (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

2.1.4 Foreign currency translation

(@)  Functional and presentation
currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entities
operate (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation
currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

214 B E (E)

2.1.4 Foreign currency translation

(continued)
(o) Transactions and balances (b) =R Z KA
Foreign currency transactions INEZZHIBERHER

are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates

MEXBERNES
%o FABRENERS R

at the dates of the transactions. BINEENEREE
Foreign exchange gains and losses RABEAFRERITE
resulting from the settlement of such i E A B BB 34 U 25 A S

transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges
and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Non-monetary items that are

B-REBaRER
MEESERRSRE
HihhaBERFREY
A BRI B BISN
EBIEFE - AR

BAFEFERIAINE

measured at fair value in a foreign HEZIEEEIER JhiR
currency are translated using the BEFTATFEEAZER
exchange rates at the date when o mNFENEZ
the fair value was determined. EENBEEREZRES

Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.4 Foreign currency translation
(continued)

(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position
of foreign operations (none of
which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

()  Assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i)  Income and expenses for
each consolidated statement
of income and consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income are translated at
average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions);
and

(i)  All resulting currency
translation differences
are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2.1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost
or revalued amounts, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or,
in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term, as follows:
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2.1.5 Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Buildings

B

Machinery and equipment

M R

Furniture and other equipment
R MR B LA 3%

Motor vehicles

AE

Leasehold improvements

HEYERE
Others
HAh

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (note 2.1.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. These are included
in profit or loss. When revalued assets
are sold, it is Group policy to transfer
any amounts included in other reserves
in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.

21 5% - MERRE(E)

Useful lives

A5 A A 5

50-59 years

502594

10 years

104F

5-10 years

5210

5 years

5%

10 years or the remaining term
of any non-renewable lease,
whichever is shorter
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.6 Investment properties 21.6 REWHE

Investment properties are held for
long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both and are not occupied
by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in profit or loss as “fair value
adjustment on investment properties”.

An owner-occupied property or a right-of-
use asset transfer for lease is recognised
as investment properties (which measured
at fair value) at the date of change in
use. The transfer is made from owner-
occupied property or right-of-use asset
to investment property when owner-
occupation ceases, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item as at the
date of transfer is treated in the same
way as a revaluation under IAS 16. Any
resulting increase in the carrying amount
of the property is recognised in the income
statement to the extent that it reverses
a previous impairment loss, with any
remaining increase recognised in other
comprehensive income and increased
directly to equity in revaluation surplus
within equity. Any resulting decrease in
the carrying amount of the property is
initially charged in other comprehensive
income against any previously recognised
revaluation surplus, with any remaining
decrease charged to the income
statement.
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217k cRMEERE

2.1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

86

Assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial
assets in the following categories:

° those to be measured
subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through
profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments
that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its
business model for managing those
assets changes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(b)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets

(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories
into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:
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Amortised cost: Assets that
are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal
and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial
assets is included in finance
income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented
in other losses together with
foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item
in profit or loss.
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218RENRHMEMEE(F)

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(c) Measurement (continued)

(© FIEM#E)

Debt instruments (continued) BRIAE)

e FVOCI: Assets that are held e EBATEFAH
for collection of contractual MmEEmKE: A
cash flows and for selling the WER AR L & 29 3R
financial assets, where the eRmEMBAER
assets’ cash flows represent HEEMEEN
solely payments of principal BEMELE R
and interest, are measured EMEERER
at FVOCI. Movements in the & MmF B R
carrying amount are taken - BlEATE
through OCI, except for the STAH A 2 E K
recognition of impairment gains mArE o BREAE
or losses, interest income and REE TIET AR
foreign exchange gains and 2w ke o
losses which are recognised RiIB % B ERW
in profit or loss. When the WA W = B
financial asset is derecognised, B FMERAR
the cumulative gain or loss E W W= M 5 18
previously recognised in OCI BRoh - EERE
is reclassified from equity to EXR IR
profit or loss and recognised SRR HEMEE
in “Other losses”. Interest W25 MR RET
income from these financial W 25 ok &5 18 R
assets is included in finance mENOEER
income using the effective IR [ E A
interest rate method. Foreign BIRHER - %E
exchange gains and losses are TEREENTE
presented in “Other losses” WA Ty IR B BT
and impairment expenses are FORET AR E WK
presented as separate line item A o HNEE U E R
in profit or loss. EHEN [ HME

#1272 - BREIEAE
FXRBamFE
REBIBEEZY -

e FVPL: Assets that do not e BATEFAE
meet the criteria for amortised miR  RIEEE
cost or FVOCI are measured A% A A
at FVPL. A gain or loss on T A EH At 2 E K
a debt investment that is HIZENEET
subsequently measured at EATFEGTAE
FVPL is recognised in profit or WmETE o WER
loss and presented net within BEREERRA
“Other losses” in the period in FEFT ABEET
which it arises. = B E

BREDTRE
. jﬁﬁéi/ﬁﬂ
B 25 [ H &
B IFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.8 Investments and other financial assets

218RENRHMERMEE(F)

(continued)
() Measurement (continued) ) FrE(E)
Equity instruments WXTE

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments
in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as “Other income” when the
Group’s right to receive payments
is established. Changes in the fair
value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in “Other losses” in profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment

AEBR A FERER
EAREGDKE - A
SEEEBEENEM
2HEK R REDIRE
B A FE W S K B 1R
RILFERIRER - &
‘EEHHBRRAFEK
s ERERD - B

5 BUEU B SR E
FHE B - ZEREN
BBV BRER R
[EMUA L - I AF{E
SABRENEREER
FEESEEANER
TREBHEERS [ Hb
BE] - mAFEEA
Hip 2wt E 0%

losses (and reversal of impairment =R ERREEE (&
losses) on equity investments BEEBERLD) TR

measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair
value.

ATERMEDTH B
5% -

(d)  Impairment of financial assets ) SmEERME
The Group assesses on a forward AREEIL TR AT
looking basis the expected credit ey B L DA 88 B AN 2 3R
losses (“ECL”) associated with ANEEFAEMEEEK

its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.
For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which requires
expected life time losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see note 3.1(b)(c) for
further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.9 Properties held for sale 21.9FHEYE

92

Properties held for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs
attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined
by reference to the sale proceeds of
properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling
expenses, or by management estimates
based on prevailing marketing conditions.

2.1.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are amounts
due from customers for lease services
performed in the ordinary course of
business or good sales. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less in the normal operating
cycle of the business of buyer, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment (see 2.1.8

(d)

FHEMERAARER]EE
FEZEEED -

RABEREBNREDEDN
FIZEAAN -

AERFENZEEARE
BRiEh hEMENHEM
BRE - RERN A ZIHE
XK EREBRBERITMIS
AIAE B BT EEE ©

2110 E S R HMEWRRIE

B RAEMEKHFAERR A
FEBBETAEFHER
an 2% 32 AR 75 1 & Uk 2 3K
7 o fi & 5 M E A UK IA
BHRETNERLELE
BAR—FHUAT - BIBRER
RRBEE - BRI H27
RIERBDEE -

B 5 K& H fth F& UK I 12 & 15
HRECVESVIER B
RN FERRE - HBE
BEAREAKTD - A5EH
RHBEEZERFE  BOA
KBMEHReSRE  WEE
VAR B ) 3R 12 8 58 P AR
EREBRBRESE (W
2.1.8(d)) °
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2.1.11 Contract assets and contract

liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a
buyer, the Group obtains rights to receive
consideration from the buyer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer
goods or provide services to the buyer.
The combination of those rights and
performance obligations gives rise to a
net asset or a net liability depending on
the relationship between the remaining
rights and the performance obligations.
The contract is an asset and recognised
as contract assets if the measure of the
remaining rights exceeds the measure of
the remaining performance obligations.
Conversely, the contract is a liability and
recognised as contract liabilities if the
measure of the remaining performance
obligations exceeds the measure of the
remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a
buyer as contract acquisition cost within
contract assets if the Group expects to
recover those costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.12 Cash and cash equivalents 1N2BERBFESEEY

94

For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash that is restricted from withdrawal,
from use or from being pledged as security
is reported separately on the face of
the consolidated balance sheets, and is
not included in the total cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statements
of cash flows.

2.1.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to the Group
prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid.

Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not
due within 12 months after the reporting
period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

BRELRBERZIIME
RERBSSENBEFH
B - SEMEEHTRR
RATEISBEA=HARNAT
ZHEBEHBRBIERE
SBEFS PSR B AT S 2
R REESHERTAL -

IRHIRE - ERERIR
THEEHEERBRTES
IR - FEREEAHEAESR
EXTREMESFEDE
B e

2113 E S R HMENTRIE

B 5 B SRS B B4R KAl
A 7 6% B B2 14 7 dm Ko AR 75 T
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

2.1.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance
sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

2.1.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

2.1.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year is
the tax payable on the current year’s
taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

2115 BERAE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.16 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(a)

Current income taxes

The current income tax charge
is calculated on the basis of the

2116 BNEA R IEFEFR B (&)

(a)

BT 1S AR

BNERPT 1S B S TR I
HBEHPRR AR B ME

tax laws enacted or substantively B A EaEE MEERE
enacted at the reporting period in ARBAZEREE M
the countries where the Company HABE B2 FHIGE

and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.

BAE - BEETF BT
B ALEAR AR
B2 B TRA
R 2IER - WEEHR
BHEAEEAREER
THEERHRAFE - K
SERIERAIGENDER
SFEHERGEET K
#REE - ARBEUARNIEE
T3] AR 47 3 R
THETE R BRIRTTER

(o) Deferred income tax (o) EIEFTISH
Deferred income tax is provided RIS AR BEERE
in full, using the liability method, BEMABEZHAERE
on temporary differences arising RERE T B WMEAERTE

between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they

Bf 2 BN Z BB
A - AT fIELT
HIRRETIR B VT HE
AEE - AT SHERE
ERIBEAE - HEERT

arise from the initial recognition of BEDRBYFHER—
goodwill. Deferred income tax is HR 5 (M BREEBE
also not accounted for if it arises )P EESAE

from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.16 Current and deferred income tax
(continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax liability in
relation to investment property that is
measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary
differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities
and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when
the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.17 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group’s subsidiaries registered
in PRC contributes, based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the
employees, to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan and medical
benefit plan organised by relevant
municipal and provincial government
authorities in the PRC on a monthly
basis. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all
existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group
has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the
contributions made. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

The Group makes contributions
to defined contribution retirement
schemes under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
in Hong Kong, the assets of which
are generally held in separate
share administered funds. The
pension plans are generally funded
by payments from employees
and by the Group. The Group’s
contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.17 Employee benefits (continued) 21T EERA(E)

(o)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable
when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when
the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b)
when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the
scope of IAS 37 and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are
measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to
their present value.

(b)

BERLAR A

BEREMNNERELS
BAKB AR X ER
AEE - KEREEX
B FREBUAR I F 18
A ST o NSRBI A
THHzRFERA®
BEA: @QEAKHE
TRER PR HAFRM
B R (b)E B REERE
PREstEREI7REE
NZEBAKRA » WX
BERR AR - fHiRH E
HIAGRREY B FRIE R - BE
BN REBERER
BHZEEZRBHE -
FEREHARZER12(E
A BB S A Z 48 ) Al b
RERE -

(c) Employee leave entitlements () EEMEZAREH
Employee entitlements to annual BEMZEENFRER
leave are recognised when they EREZERER WA
accrue to employees. A provision is BEEHZEEAER
made for the estimated liability for AHAFTIR M RS M Bk &

100

annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Bz hstEERGEED
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BEMZEENRBIE
BRENRRE S SR
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2.1.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present
value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the
present value of the obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability.
The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2.1.18 %15
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.19 Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when or as
performance obligations are satisfied by
transferring control of a promised good or
service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the asset
may transfer over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

° creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed
to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the
asset.

The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation
is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation that best depict
the Group’s performance in satisfying the
performance obligation.
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2119 M ATERR (&)

2.1.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

Direct sales

Revenue from direct sales of
merchandise is recognised when
the control of the products has
transferred, being when the buyer
obtains the future right to direct the
use of the merchandise and obtain
substantially all of the remaining
benefits from the merchandise,
recovery of the consideration is
probable, the associated costs
and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement
with the goods, and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

The consideration relevant to sales
of merchandise that result in the
award of credits to customers
under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, is not recognised as
revenue at the time of the initial sale
transaction. A contract liability for the
award of credits is recognised at the
time of sales. Revenue is recognised
when the awarded credits are
redeemed. A contract liability is
derecognised when the awarded
credits are redeemed.

Sales of merchandise that result in
the award of credits to customers
under the Group’s customer
loyalty programme, are accounted
for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value
of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the
merchandise sold and the award
credits awarded. The consideration
allocated to the awarded credits is
measured by reference to the fair
value of the cash coupons for which
they could be redeemed.
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HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.19 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

Commission from concessionaire
sales

Commission income from
concessionaire sales is recognised
upon sales of goods by the relevant
stores.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income from lease of
property owned by the Company
and subleased shop premises under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period covered by the lease
term. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivables.
Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Properties sales

For property sales contracts,
the control of the property are
transferred at a point in time, thus
revenue is recognized when the
customer obtains the physical
possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group
has present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is
probable.
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HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.1.19 Revenue recognition (continued) 2119 W ATERE (&)

(e) Promotion, administration and (e) 1B~ TTHERERBRKA
management income
Revenue from promotion, 1288 - ITTHRAMEB B
administration and management ARIB R E &P AT R] 37
fees is recognised according to HMERE & R RK - 1R
the underlying contract terms with it ¥8 FE AR 75 B T LA RE
concessionaries and as the services e
are provided accordingly.

()  Credit card handling fee for H EHREZHEFESR
concessionaire sales
Credit card handling fee for ERANERHETESR
concessionaire sales is recognised W A FE 32 L 48 8 AR 75
when the relevant service is TER o
rendered.

(@) Prepaid cards () TERFR

Cash received for prepaid cards sold
are recognised as contract liabilities
in the balance sheet. Revenue from
prepaid cards is recognised when
the goods are delivered and the
control of the goods has transferred.
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2.1.20 Interest income

21.21

Interest income from financial assets
at FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains/(losses) on these assets, see note 8
below.

Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset (for self-occupation), an
investment property (for subleased-out
under operating leases), a receivable (for
subleased-out under finance leases) and a
corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the
Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract
to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of properties for which
the Group is a lesseeg, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components
and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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2.1.21 Leases (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a
lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are
based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase
option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under
reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If
that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment
with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.1.21 Leases (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing
rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third
party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts
with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent
third party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency
and security.

Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs; and

L) restoration costs.
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2.1.21 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term
leases of equipment and vehicles and all
leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment
and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases
where the Group is a lessor is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term (note 2.1.19(c)). Initial direct
costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount
of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group
did not need to make any adjustments to
the accounting for assets held as lessor
as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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2.2.1 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.2.2 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board that
makes strategic decisions.

2.2.3Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences
are capitalised on the basis of the cost
incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These cost are
amortised using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10
years. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are
recognised as an expense as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2.2.4Inventories 224%EFE8

Inventories comprise merchandise
purchased for resale, and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weight
average method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.2.5Share capital and shares held for

employee share scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired
from the market by the trust under
the employee share scheme, the total
consideration of shares acquired from the
market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares
held for employee share scheme and
deducted from total equity. Upon vesting,
the related costs of the vested shares
for employee share scheme purchased
from the market are credited to shares
held for employee share scheme, with
a corresponding decrease in employee
share-based compensation reserve for
employee share scheme.
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2.2.6 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-
settled, share-based compensation plans,
under which the Group receives services
from employees as consideration for
equity instruments (including share option
and awarded shares) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the equity
instruments is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments granted:

o Including any market performance
conditions;

o Excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions; and

o Including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of equity instruments that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the share options are exercised,
the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital.
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2.2.7 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

2.2.8 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.

2.2.9Losses per share
(a) Basic losses per share

Basic losses per share is calculated
by dividing:

° the losses attributable to
owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than
ordinary shares;

° by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial
year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.
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2.2.9 Losses per share (continued)

(b)  Diluted losses per share

Diluted losses per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of
basic losses per share to take into
account:

° the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average
number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.2.10 Government grants

Grants from the government are
recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the profit or
loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended
to compensate.

Government grants relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.
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HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risks, and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under the
policies approved by the Board. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management,
as well as policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is mainly exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”) and United
States dollar ("USD”) against RMB.
This foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions
or recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency of
RMB.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange risk
during 2023 and 2022.
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(@) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The carrying amount of the foreign
currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities of
group companies at the respective
dates of statement of financial
position are as follows:

Assets BE
HKD BT
UsD ETT
Liabilities A&
HKD BT

(@) WHEEREGE)
i) SMER(E)

SERRNABEIEMN
R BEASNESHED
ERMHEERERILER
BEWREEESTN

T
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

17,009 4,438
183 178
17,192 4,616
1,733 3,079
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table shows the
sensitivity analysis of a 2% change
in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis
includes only foreign currency
denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year-
end for a 2% change in foreign
currency rates. Should RMB
strengthened/weakened by 2%
against the relevant currencies,the
effects on the profit or loss for the
year would be as follows:

RMB against HKD: ARBEEE
Strengthened by 2% F1E2%
Weakened by 2% B71E2%
RMB against USD: ARBSHET
Strengthened by 2% FE2%
Weakened by 2% B2 1E2%

In addition, the conversion of RMB
denominated balances into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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(a) Market risk (continued) (a) TEHERERE)

(i

118

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings. Restricted bank
deposits issued at fixed rates
exposed the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Other financial
instruments issued at variable rates
exposed the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk.

The Group does not anticipate
significant impact to cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank
deposits because the interest rates
of these assets are not expected to
change significantly.

The interest rates and terms of
repayment of borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in note 32.
The Group does not carry out any
hedging activities to manage its
interest rate exposure.

As at 31 December 2023, if interest
rates on bank balances at variable
rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss before tax for
the year ended 31 December 2023
would have been approximately
RMB251,000 (2022: RMB390,000)
lower/higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(a) Market risk (continued) (a) THEHERERE)

(i

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (continued)

At 31 December 2023, if interest
rates on borrowings had been 50
basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, loss
before tax for the year ended 31
December 2023 would have been
approximately RMB2,782,000 (2022:
RMB2,930,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
securities price risk in connection
with the financial assets at FVPL held
by the Group, which are unlisted
equity securities at 31 December
2023. The Group closely monitors
the fluctuation of the price and
assesses the impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
If the price of equity securities the
Group invested had been 5% higher/
lower, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would
have been decreased/increased by
approximately RMB218,000 (2022:
RMB214,000), as a result of more/
less fair value change on financial
assets at FVPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk arises from restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and trade and other
receivables. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk, restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents were placed with state-
owned financial institutions and
reputable commercial banks which
are all high-credit-quality financial
institutions in mainland China and
Hong Kong. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that provision
of rental services and direct sales
are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. It also
has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue trade and other
receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade
receivables and other receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group has no
significant concentrations of credit
risk, with exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and
customers.
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e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has five types of financial
assets that are subject to the ECL
model:

° Cash and cash equivalents and
restricted bank deposits;

° Trade receivables for sales of
inventory;

o Receivables from operating
leases;

° Amount due from a related
party; and

° Other receivables.

While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as at
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARAKE)

(i

122

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

The Group considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of
asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. A default
on a financial asset is when
the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments when they
fall due. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets with
the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators
are incorporated:

° actual or expected significant
adverse changes in business,
financial and economic
conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to
the third party debtor’s ability
to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant
changes in the operating
results of the customers;

° significant changes in the
expected performance and
behavior of the debtor,
including changes in the
payment status of debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) FEHARKRE)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of trade receivables for
sales of merchandise

The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

The expected loss rates are based
on the corresponding historical
credit losses and adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
On that basis, the Group assessed
that the impairment of loss allowance
for trade receivables was immaterial
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Impairment of receivables from
operating leases

The Group applies the IFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for
all receivables from operating leases.

To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables from
operating leases have been
assessed on individual basis or
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past
due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of receivables from
operating leases (continued)

Except for certain receivables from
tenants with specific credit risk
the Group adopts an individual
impairment assessment approach,
the Group uses a provision matrix
to calculate ECLs for receivables
from operating leases. The provision
rates are based on the past due days
for groupings of various tenants’
segments that have similar patterns.
The expected loss rates are based
on the corresponding historical
credit loss rates and adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the
tenants to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the
Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”),
Consumer Price Index (“CPI”) and
M2 Growth Rate of the countries in
which it sells its goods and services
to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected
changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARAKE)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (i) TSREEREGE)
(continued)
Impairment of receivables from AL EEM IR E
operating leases (continued) (%)
On that basis, the collective basis Bt - BIE2023F 12
loss allowance as at 31 December ABTEMEBEERR
2023 was determined as follows: BT
More than
Current  0-30days 31-90days 91-365days 365 days Total
PH 0E0X  MEBOX 912365k  BiB65K h
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
As 31 December 2023 2023124318
Expected loss rate EHEEER 10.60% 10.35% 32.01% 67.56% 100.00% 19.79%
Gross carrying amount BERE 22,761 1,150 653 1,085 1,999 27,648
Loss allowance BEEE 2,412 119 209 733 1,099 5,472
As 31 December 2022 R2022E12 4318
Expected loss rate BHEEX 21.93% 20.43% 38.67% 75.01% 100.00% 33.54%
Gross carrying amount E5ERE 30,685 2,560 2,260 1877 4,519 41,901
Loss allowance ERRE 6,728 523 874 1,408 4519 14,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARAKE)

(i

126

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of receivables from
operating leases (continued)

As of 31 December 2023, the
original carrying value of individual
impaired receivables from operating
leases was RMB2,643,000 (2022:
2,139,000), the loss allowance was
RMB2,643,000 (2022: 2,139,000)
such that the net carrying value of
individually impaired receivables from
operating leases was zero.

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Impairment of amount due from a
related party

Due to the financial difficulties of the
related party, the amount due from
a related party is credit impaired
and was categorised in stage 3 in
2023. The Group measures the loss
allowance of the amount due from a
related party at an amount equal to
the lifetime ECL according to IFRS 9
requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

ECL model for amount due from a
related party, as summarised below:

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

Amount due from a related
party is not credit-impaired on
initial recognition is classified
in “Stage 1” and has its credit
risk continuously monitored
by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a
12-month basis;

The Group measures the loss
allowance for amount due
from a related party at an
amount equal to the lifetime
ECL if the credit risk of that
financial instrument has
increased significantly since
initial recognition, but is not yet
deemed to be credit impaired;

If the financial instrument is
credit-impaired (as defined
below), it is then moved to
“Stage 3”. The expected credit
loss is measured on lifetime
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The ECL is the discounted product
of the Probability of Default (PD),
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss
Given Default (LGD). These three
components are multiplied together.
This effectively calculates an ECL
for each future year, which is then
discounted back to the reporting
date and summed. The discount rate
used in the ECL calculation is the
effective interest.

EAD is based on the amounts the
Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the remaining
lifetime. The PD represents the
likelihood of a borrower defaulting
on its financial obligation, over the
remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of
the obligation. LGD represents the
Group’s expectation of the extent of
loss on a defaulted exposure.

(b) EHARARKGE)

(i

ERMEEREGE)

JEM — F B 75 AR A
JR1E ()

BHERIRARENM
KOEOBE) - BHA
BREEENERRE)
MEMNBRRCENE
RE)WBRBREY - &
= BRI - &
B E T BERE
FENEHERES
REGHBERE R E A
HAYO kAN - AT EFEHE
FBRREEARRLR X

SEBHE -

EHRBRERBRENE
B2 QR TR ERIER
A BHAMRNE
B} o BB ERRER
ANFEE TS BT R A ap i
HRFEOBRE)A
BRI RBH A RE
o BHOBARERRRA
A EORRRERL
REHTER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F[E# 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARKE)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The calculation of ECL incorporate
forward-looking information. The
Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the predict
China real GDP growth in which it
provides its services to be the most
relevant factors as the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and
the expected credit loss.

As with any economic forecasts,
the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a high
degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may
be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers
these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes to
establish that the chosen scenarios
are appropriately representative of
the range of possible scenarios.
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARKE)

(i

130

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

Judgment of significant increase in
credit risk (“SICR”)

Under IFRS 9, when considering
the impairment stages for financial
assets, the Group evaluates the
credit risk at initial recognition
and also whether there is any
significant increase in credit risk
for each reporting period. The
Group considers various reasonable
supporting information to judge
if there is significant increase in
credit risk when determining the
ECL staging for financial assets.
Major factors being considered
include overdue status, solvency and
operational capabilities. The Group
could base on individual financial
instruments or portfolios of financial
instruments with similar credit risk
characteristics to determine ECL
staging by comparing the credit risks
of the financial instruments at the
reporting date with those at initial
recognition.

The Group reviews the related
party’s financial information and
assesses the related party’s financial
position to judge whether the credit
risk has SICR after initial recognition.
The judgment criteria mainly include
the PD changes of the debtors,
changes of credit risk categories and
other indicators of SICR, etc.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARAKE)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The definition of credit-impaired
assets

Under IFRS 9, in order to determine
whether credit impairment occurs,
the defined standards adopted by
the Group are consistent with the
internal credit risk management
objectives for relevant financial
assets, while considering
quantitative and qualitative
indicators. When the Group
assesses whether the debtor has
credit impairment, the following
factors are mainly considered:

° The debt has overdue after the
contract payment date;

° The lender gives the debtor
concessions for economic or
contractual reasons due to the
debtor’s financial difficulties,
where such concessions are
normally reluctant to be made
by the lender;

o The debtor has significant
financial difficulties;

° The debtor is likely to go
bankrupt or needs other
financial restructuring;

° The credit impairment of
financial assets may be caused
by the joint effects of multiple
events, and may not be caused
by separately identifiable
events.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARAKE)

(i

132

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of amount due from a
related party (continued)

The definition of credit-impaired
assets (continued)

As with any economic forecasts,
the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a high
degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may
be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers
these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes to
establish that the chosen scenarios
are appropriately representative of
the range of possible scenarios.

The directors have reviewed the
related party’s financial information
and assessed the related party’s
financial difficulties. As the related
party is faced with liquidity problem,
the Group evaluated the amount due
from a related party as in default. The
expected credit loss of the amount at
due from a related party is measured
on lifetime basis.

As at 31 December 2023, the
Group provided credit losses of
RMB336,164,000 on the amount
due from a related party.
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) =ARKE)

(i

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Impairment of other receivables

The Group applies the IFRS 9 three-
stage approach to measuring ECL.
The Group’s other receivables
mainly include interest receivables,
receivables from finance leases and
lease deposits for the leases of right-
of-use assets. These three types of
other receivables were categorised
in stage 1, and the credit risk is
low, therefore the impact of loss
allowance is immaterial.

As at 31 December 2023,
RMB1,765,000 (2022:
RMB1,368,000) of impairment of
loss allowance was made for the
receivables.
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) ERERRKRE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (ih SMEEREE)

(continued)
Loss allowance movement during the FRAE ISR EE
year
The loss allowances for financial R2023F 12 A31BH
assets as at 31 December 2023 TREEREREHED
reconcile to the opening loss UISEBEEERNT ¢

allowances as follows:

Receivables  Amount due

from from
operating arelated Other
leases party  receivables Total
El—%
RERE BES Hitr
FEWsE HE e @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR

At 1 January MA1R 16,191 135,000 2,118 153,309
(Decrease)/increase inloss ~ ERRBHER

allowance recognised in BB RER

profit or loss during the year (%) /1411 (2,970) 201,164 6,298 204,492
Written off in loss allowance  #ZEREFHEAH

recognised in the past year BB (5,106) - (6,651) (11,757)
At 31 December W12A318 8,115 336,164 1,765 346,044
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(c)

Liquidity risk

(i)

Financing arrangements

In March 2019, the Group obtained
RMB360,000,000 5-year credit
facilities from a PRC Bank, which
was secured by certain investment
properties of the Group (note 32(a)).
For the year ended 31 December
2023, RMB112,373,000 of the
facilities which will expire within one
year was undrawn by the Group.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The management of the Group

(c)

RBESEM

(i)

(i

BE LB

R2019%3 A + "&EE
HEREFBITESA
R # 360,000,000 7T #9
hAFHEERE - A
AEBMABETEREDE
YEHE 38 (KT 7E32(a)) °
HE2023F12A31H
IEFE BMEARE
112,373,000 JT [# & 1
REBRE - WK —F

TR B EDIH

AEEEEENERRE

aims to maintain sufficient cash REFBFTENIRE MRS
and cash equivalents and ensure ZLEY  WRBTIH
the availability of funding through ATARE (BER M

an adequate amount of available
financing, including short-term
and long-term bank borrowings
to meet its business demand. The
Group maintains bank facilities and
continuously monitors forecasted
and actual cash flow and the
maturity profiles of its financial
liability to control the liquidity risk.

The table below shows the Group’s
financial liabilities based on the
remaining period at the end of the
reporting period to the contractual
maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
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RHRITE ) A RER
BEH A AN - femm
REEBHENR - ARHE
MRIRITRE WITEE
ZRANERRERE
;ESRARIHBER
PAESRBVE & B -

TRETAEERRE
HAZEMNEHE LR
R THENEZRE
B RARBENSER
BHRRBRBASRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December

2023

Borrowings (Note 32)
- Principal to be repaid
- Interest payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities

136

(c)

RBESERE)

iy =MBEBEINERE)

B E2023F12A31H

IEEE
More than ~ More than
1yearbut 2years but
Within less than less than ~ More than

1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

—ENEE  RENLE
-ER WENR  RENR  BBIE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR®Tn ARETn ARETR ARETR
BRME2) 505,866 10,282 28,469 42,868 587,485
-EEEMES 493,140 6,667 20,000 36,666 556,473
~ERFIS 12,726 3,615 8,469 6,202 31,012
fEaE 104,486 107,230 320,255 308,972 840,943
AemaE 105,978 - - - 105,978
716,330 117,512 348,724 351,840 1,534,406
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HBELERE)
(i)  Maturities of financial liabilities (ih SBEINHE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December B E2022F12H31H
2022 IFFE

More than More than
yearbut 2 years but
Within less than lessthan  More than
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—ENEE  RENLE
—ER LA AEHA e Rk @5
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE  ARBTR  ARETRT ARETT ARETR

Borrowings (Note 32) BR(W32) 351,494 209,701 29,654 51,965 642,814
- Principal to be repaid -EEERNAE 319,697 203,028 20,000 43333 586,058
- Interest payables -ERFIE 31,797 6,673 9,654 8,632 56,756

Lease liabilities HEAE 108,495 93,100 293,898 393,042 888,535

Other financial liabilities HeRaE 126,350 = = = 126,350

586,339 302,801 323,662 445,007 1,667,699
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to

o Safeguard their ability to continue as a
going concern, so that they can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders; and

° Maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group
monitors its capital structure on the basis of
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines debt as total borrowings and equity
as total equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2023
and 2022 were as follows:

Borrowings (Note 32) B (HaE32)
Lease liabilities HEAE
Total borrowings CEE L
Equity e
Debt-to-equity ratio BEERL:

AEBEREAZBRR

s REAKBEFELZEME
N BRFBESRRERM
BERSHMKNESE &

s MREREBEARRBURD
ZNDFAN

Z%ZET%&DHWQZK E - AEET
REERERNTRRZEE - @&
BRZER - %’éfﬁ%ﬁﬂxf’ﬁiﬁj%ﬁ
BB BER B

BITREMNER -2 AEEREA
FT»?%ﬁﬁttfﬁ*Eﬁi\ﬁzﬁ L - gt

 AEEK B EEERSERE
ﬁE jIHﬂ%EmE%EZ%ﬁ AEAA
FE(5 #BKEas

M2023F 2022F12 A1 2 A
B =RNT

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AREETT

556,473 586,058
644,113 691,846
1,200,586 1,277,904
785,847 1,116,511
153% 114%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(@) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair
values of the financial instruments that are
recognised and measured at fair value in
the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group
has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table.

Recurring fair value

measurements

BEMLFETE

31 December 2023

#2023512A31H

FVPL BATEEBER

Unlisted equity securities K EMRERES
(Note 20) (Hiz20)
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(a)

DNFEER

7 613 ) A 7 T A B TS SRR
RAEBRAFEAEZEHT
B2 FERME L 2 HIE &
fhat - RBEEAFEMBE
ABEMAEREESR X
SERESHENGESR
BENABOIR=ZRE - BE
R BEFEN TR -

Level 2 Level 3 Total

%2/ F3E s

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR ARWT:R

- 4,350 4,350
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

140

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Recurring fair value

measurements

BEMNTETE

31 December 2022

#2022 12A31R

FVPL BATEEBER

Unlisted equity securities K EMRERE%
(Note 20) (Hiz20)

There were no transfers between levels 1,
2 and 3 during the year (2022: nil).

The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers into and transfers out of fair
value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial
instruments traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives, and trading
and available-for-sale securities) is based
on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

(@) DFEERGE)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1B F2E £k @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
- - 4,288 4,288

RAERE - B1E - F2BR
S 3E 2 A 4 8 8 (2022
FE) -

AEBEZHRERRNEREN
RERRAFEERZBEAR
B/

F1E  NEBRTMHEEZS
BIAPINAREENITE
TH MtEExAIHLE
ZRBHF) N HEDRREE
HIRPIBmEFNE - A&H
REZEREEMERZT
BHRERRITEANE - TF
TRABEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(a) Fair value hierarchy (continued) (a) DAFEZSHE)
Level 2: The fair value of financial F2fE - WIFNERMHBEER
instruments that are not traded in an active Z 2B TR (FII5INE 50T
market (for example, over-the-counter AT E)ZAFETRGEER
derivatives) is determined using valuation EETE - ZEERERERN
techniques which maximise the use of AABEMSHEEREER
observable market data and rely as little as DR E B EEE o M
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all —EIANAFEFRZEHM
significant inputs required to fair value an BERBABBAERY
instrument are observable, the instrument B AT AIAFIE -
is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant $EIE : PN—IANZIHE AN
inputs is not based on observable market ABIBIN IERIBAI B R T 5
data, the instrument is included in level g BIZ T RS AEIE -
3. This is the case for unlisted equity IELETRAFBSBENR -
securities.

(b) Valuation techniques used to (b) AEEBEAFEZMEELZE

determine fair values

Specific valuation techniques used to
value FVPL include:

o The use of quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for similar instruments;
and

° For other financial instruments —
discounted cash flow analysis

Also see note 14 for the valuation
techniques for investment properties.

There were no changes in valuation
techniques during the year.
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RAEZEAFES ABRAR
RAFEHERMEERE

o EABUTIANTSR
BARXHERE &

e HHESRMIA-LAME
BEMEDHN °

BRAREMEZGEET AH
2RIMEE14

R R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The preparation of financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also
needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and judgements that may have a
significant effect on the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year as
discussed below.

The Group is subject to income taxes in
the PRC. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different. Details of the
deferred income tax are disclosed in note 19.

RS RE A AR MRS
% EELSRERER - EREN
BRI A B 0 @ 3 IR BRE R (i
8 -

fhat KAV SR AR - ERBBE
R HEBEAR  BREAEEZERE
R BEEENBERBATHERGE
ZHREFEM 2 EE -

PN T XA - 3t R e A
ERABNEEERT - HREESE
ARE -

AEBBETEYMAENR - €8
EMBREER - BEELERH
- BZAISHMAE S R 2 &K
BMBEEH/TEE - ARERE
HELAFEHNBIMNIR 2 BET
ITRHIR SR ERERAE
I E MR RER G AR BRI
B BIR - ALEZE[ZE
1 78 A T2 BRI MO AR B RO T A
SHEENEE -

11 3 B 8 A AR R B AR A 0 ) T
RIS E B Z R IRB R - Al
SRREE TEREZHENMRARNKX
BRNEENREE - RERSHH
ZRERIABATRE  BIEAEH
Z BB EET9 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by using valuation technique.
Details of the judgment and assumptions have
been disclosed in note 14. If the market rents
of investment properties had been 5% higher/
lower, loss before income tax for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would have been
approximately RMB89,907,000 lower/higher.

Except for certain receivables from tenants
with specific credit risk the Group adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach,
the Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for receivables from operating leases.
The provision rates are based on the past due
days for groupings of various tenants’ segments
that have similar patterns. The expected loss
rates are based on the corresponding historical
credit losses and adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the tenants to
settle the receivables.

Significant judgement and estimation are
required in determining the ECLs of receivables
from operating leases. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be
representative of tenant’s actual default in the
future.
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REMEN QN FERGERME
T oo HE RBREZFBE R T
4FEE - WEEDMEZRF
B, 5% - B & & 2023
F12ABIALEFEZHRABEM
AIBEGRD B mH AR
89,907,0007T °

frEs BEBEREEARROESZ
FEMRIRSN - AR E S R E R
BERHETT E5 - NEE A BHE R
AEREHEERYSRNTERER
B8 o BB RTZ AR R BRLUR
AH 2 B P 7 8B4 Bl B E 2 H
B¥mE - BHERBRIIZAR
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BRER RATEENZBERERERE
B ZERERFEREPBERIGK
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HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

The Impairment of amount due from a related
party is based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group
uses significant judgement and estimation in
making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

The chief operating decision-makers are the
Board that makes strategic decisions, and reviews
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management
has determined the operating segments based on
these reports.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their business
operations and has two reportable operating
segments as follows:

o Department store business — operation of
department stores;

o Others — property business and unallocated
items, comprising mainly head office overheads.

The Board assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of net profit. At the
Group level, no information regarding segment assets
and segment liabilities is provided to the Board.

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are
mainly attributable to the market in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

& Hs — 4 AR 07 SRR MR (B T B R
ERENAREEHRBAENR
o REAEENEBEESL - RE
AN & B 8 3R 5 HAR &Y AT RE 4
st - AEEEELELRERNE
BREAENBAER  ERAEX
HEr AT -

IBREARERFHBBARNES
g &%EKEIE’JW*M&W&M%%%

RERME - AEBRELBHLEES
EHER - I AARETHEEEH

m

s HBEEEB-RKRZEBEE:

o Hit—FMEXRHLRIEER
TERREMERFAL -

EFERBEFRENNTEFEHRED B

KR - RAKEER  BEAESS
RHEEEOMEERDMABENER

AEENOBARFRBEETZRER
hEMS - Bt - WEZFMIHEFR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The segment information is as follows:

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with
customers
At a point in time

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Other operating revenue

Other gains/(losses) — net

Fair value loss on investment
properties

Purchase of and changes in
inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
expenses

Net impairment losses on
financial assets

Net impairment losses on
prepayment

Other operating expenses — net

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year
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A
BEF&RYA
ERX—RHER

H R HA
HE WA

Hip &2 WA
Hib ez, (&18)F5E
REMEN RN TEER

BERMFEX
WEREIHEFRX

ERMEEMNRERBRFR
BN AR BB R F
H A 82 FSOF R

REER(BR)

BB WA

BB R E R

BRAT S BLATAS 18
PSR %

FEBR

HWART :

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31ALLFEE

Department
store

business Others Group
BEEFEK Hit rE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR%®TRT AR%®TrR
190,666 - 190,666
7,727 - 7,727
182,939 - 182,939
29,886 - 29,886
57,486 (84,643) (27,157)
(156,004) - (156,004)
(6,667) - (6,667)
(27,715) (6,412) (34,127)
(3,198) (434) (3,632)
(3,328) (201,164) (204,492)

- (62,950) (62,950)

(78,002) (3,859) (81,861)
3,124 (359,462) (356,338)
9,279 9,197 18,476
(53,062) (15,580) (68,642)
(43,783) (6,383) (50,166)
(40,659) (365,845) (406,504)
7,922 48,173 56,095
(82,737) (317,672) (350,409)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with
customers
At a point in time

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Other operating revenue

Other losses — net

Fair value loss on investment
properties

Purchase of and changes in
inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
expenses

Net impairment losses on
financial assets

Other operating expenses — net

Operating loss

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs — net

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year

A
EF&RYA
FER — B B HER

HAth SRIRULA
i ON

AT B A
Hh s R
& ATERR
FRRERE

BEBMFEX
ENEHFX

TRVEERRIERERFHE
H & &5 SOFRR

KEER

BEWA
BERA

BERAFER

BRET 1S B AT RS 18
RS

FEBE

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F12A31B ILFE

Department

store
business Others Group
BEEES HAftb REHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT ARETT
191,576 - 191,576
7,105 - 7,105
184,471 - 184,471
31,852 114 31,966
(240,300) (43,962) (284,262)
(221,877) = (221,877)
(5,196) - (5,196)
(42,911) (7,829) (50,740)
(12,341) (1,260) (13,601)
(22,210) (135,000) (157,210)
(81,565) (4,493) (86,058)
(402,972) (192,430) (695,402)
10,588 149 10,737
(70,191) (14,407) (84,598)
(59,603) (14,258) (73,861)
(462,575) (206,688) (669,263)
87,600 25,169 112,769
(374,975) (181,519) (5656,494)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F[E# 4




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBET T
Rental income HalA 182,939 184,471
Direct sales BHEHE 7,396 6,466
Commission from concessionaire sales HZHEMRS 331 639
190,666 191,576
There was no individual customer contributing over H E2023F K2022F12 A31H IF4F
10% of the Group’s total revenue for the years ended B TESBEZEFPFERBKAGREER
31 December 2023 and 2022. BUT A10% A F o
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Promotion, administration and 288 - THEEBKRA
management income 22,681 29,245
Credit card handling fees for HEHENERARTFES
concessionaire sales 516 684
Government grant R AT B 6,689 2,037
29,886 31,966
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

Gain/(loss) from early termination
and modification of leases

Gain from write-off of long aging trade
and other payables

Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries
(Note 35(d)(ii))

Deposit forfeited for terminated lease
agreements

Loss on disposal of financial assets
at FVPL (Note 20)

Loss from the change of sublease
agreements

Fair value change on financial assets
at FVPL (Note 20)

Certain lessors rent concession

Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Provision of impairment for properties
held for sale (Note 23)

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Others

RAMRIEREEREZ
W,/ (E518)
EHE 5 & B Ath FE T 3K
BRARKR 2 RS
& B A R A F RS
(B 5£35(d)(i)
BIETHE W=
2ERe
BAFEFABRYE
JEMEEZHER
B(#it20)
BEEMEREEE

2 U

BAFEF ABZEVE
ZERMEEZATE
2 8)(f15£20)

ETHEAANEEER

HEEFEEEIE

BESHEDENRE
B (Ha23)

HEME  BERLZE
2B

Htth

Note
B 5T

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARE®TT
30,593 (164,107)
25,186 -
7,245 -
2,588 3,238

- (53,342)

= (89,223)

= 10,334

= 8,289

- (523)

(96,000) -
(121) (1,398)
3,352 2,470
(27,157) (284,262)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

A net gain of RMB30,593,000 was recognised
in 2023, mainly as the Group and the lessor of
a store entered into the supplementary lease
agreement for rent reduction. The gain resulted
from the derecognition of lease liabilities as
lessee. A net loss of RMB164,107,000 was
recognized in 2022 mainly due to that the
Group and the lessor of Shiyan Store entered
into the early termination agreement of the
lease agreement. The loss resulted from the
derecognition of related right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as the lessee as well as
the derecognition of related finance lease
receivables as the lessor.

In 2022, the Group signed overall sublease
agreements of two stores with two tenants
respectively, and a net loss of RMB89,223,000
was recognised resulting from the change in
lease receivables and the derecognition of right-
of-use assets.

Certain lessors agreed to offer rent concession
to the Group, without changing the terms of
lease agreements. The Group recognised a
gain of RMB8,289,000 of such rent concession
for the year ended 31 December 2022 with a
corresponding reduction in the lease liabilities.

These long aging trade and other payables are
beyond the legal retroactive period and are not
expected to be paid in the future.

A net gain of RMB7,245,000 was recognised
due to two subsidiaries were disposed in
October 2023.
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(Note 3.1(b))

Net impairment losses on prepayment

Utilities

Employee benefit expenses (Note 710)

Fal= g T S

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

= AT o

Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 &t & 2= 895 (8 &5 18, % 58

(Pft3E3.1(b))

NAEE
EERMAZ (MFFE10)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses #TE & # 55 2

Other tax expenses

Purchase of and changes in inventories

(Note 22)
Cleaning fee
Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Other services
Office expenses
Advertising costs
Business travel expenses
Bank charges
Transportation expenses
Net foreign exchange gains
Other expenses

Total expenses

Hib IR

BRI

A2 BB 3 B
— 2 HRT
—H AR
MRERX
B ERA
NERAX
RITWE

BRI

BEE 54 e 2k
HAibFAx

#R s

TE SRIR R R E R 1R 3 5

FERE R EEH(ME22)

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
204,492 157,210
62,950 =
59,724 59,939
34,127 50,740
3,632 13,601
5,655 7,297
6,667 5,196
2,630 3,257
2,350 2,500
800 850
1,804 2,686
688 1,923
548 723
161 235
34 70
(5,142) (3,239)
12,609 9,913
393,729 312,805
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e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Wages and salaries IERF®

Social security costs FLARACAR
Severance payment BB

Total employee benefit expenses EERMNMZR%E

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
one (2022: one) director whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in note 38.
The emoluments payable to the remaining four
(2022: four) individuals during the year are as
follows:

Basic salaries and allowances HEAR ¢ MoERL
Contributions to the retirement schemeiR &t 2 4 3%

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 4

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETT

29,335 45,512
3,341 3,956
1,451 1,272

34,127 50,740

AREBPREANTEZESHFALTE
1B (2022F 1 Z)EERE
B4 2N M 38 DM - BEY
FENE #2442 (2022F - 48 & &
FATHFFBET -

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

2,753 3,758
94 158
2,847 3,916
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The emoluments fell within the following bands: &N FATEHE -

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
—EC=F —ECCF
Emolument band (in HK dollar) <& EET)
HKD500,001 — HKD1,000,000 500,001 L2
1,000,000/ 7T 3 1
HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ 702
1,500,000/ 7T 1 3
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Finance income BE WA
Interest income from finance leases RMEREFBWKA 8,858 10,132
Interest income from related party U B8 75 FI B IR 8,473 =
Interest income from bank deposits RITHEAFI B YA 1,145 605
18,476 10,737
Finance costs BB AR
Interest expenses on operating leases  {EAEFA ZKLHE
as the lessee B R (33,228) (46,286)
Interest expenses on bank loans RITEFFBERAE (35,414) (38,312)
(68,642) (84,598)
Finance costs — net BB F R (50,166) (73,861)
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETT

Current income tax BVERFT 15 %50
- PRC corporate income tax —HEBEMEH (81,922) -
Deferred income tax (Note 19) RS (HTaE19) 25,827 (112,769)
(56,095) (112,769)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs REEREHATEENEATEER
from the theoretical amount that would arise using RERBBERARNERAEEZHBRARZ
the statutory tax rates applicable to the subsidiaries EEMETHEMAENIEREENT
comprising the Group as follows:
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Loss before income tax BrPTS IR AT E B (406,504) (669,263)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% B E25% B AFIE
(2022: 25%) (2022 £ : 25%) (101,626) (167,316)
Tax impact of: IATEIB RS2
- Expenses not deductible for — RNA[ 0 F 2 (d)
tax purposes (d) 73 10,834
- Unrecognised temporary differences — KRR ER
((e).Note 23) ((e) * Fi&E23) 24,000 8,656
- Unrecognised tax losses — REERTRIEEE 21,458 35,057
Income tax credit FrigTiE e (56,095) (112,769)
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(a)

Fal= g T S

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided
as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes
on overseas profits have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

The applicable income tax rate is 25% for the
Group’s subsidiaries generally. Certain of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to
small and micro entity tax credit, which enjoys
the 20% tax rate and a 50% deduction of
taxable income.

[t mainly represented the tax impact of the loss
on disposal of financial assets at FVPL for the
year ended 31 December 2022 which was not
deductible for tax purpose.

The difference mainly is caused by the
impairment of Zhuhai Xiangyao Real Estate
Development Company’s (“Zhuhai Xiangyao”)
properties held for sale.

RIEASHENRA LR - K&
EBEBMNENRERSHNMAE
Bi o

HRASERNFALBERBESL
ERERBUER - B BT AT
SRR - BINENHIERE
AEBESENRAEERNERZL
7 REREMZZERAEREDN
BITHEFHE -

RE BB QB R — B RATEHR
R125% o ARARETHEMBA
AEREA/NMILERTERR -
B14220% &Y % = 87 B F0 8. 50%
RIEREMA -

ETXERKEE2022F12A31H
IEFERAFEFABIEREZHE
& R E E BRI A A IR E A B

BRE -
HERTBHINEHIBE HERME

BRRAR([REHR])AFEN
FHEMEREME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022

Losses attributable to owners of RARVEE AEIHERER

the Company (in RMB thousand) (AR®TT) (340,982) (556,117)
Weighted average number of BT E @RI T HE

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (F&) 2,495,000 2,494,870
Basic losses per share FREKREE

(RMB per share) (BRRARE) (0.14) (0.22)
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary REBRARFEDBEETELERS
shares in issue during this year, so the diluted B BFI SRR E NS
earnings per share equals the basic earnings per AR E AU ES ©
share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022F 1283181k

FE
As at 1 January 2022 H2022F181AH
Capitalised subsequent expenditure E#&RSEFTER
Transfer to lease receivables EEHERUGIE

Net losses from fair value adjustment A &R 7 B8 T
Early termination and modification of 2R IE R Z B HER

As at 31 December 2022

lease contracts (note 8(a)) % (HI3E8(a)

R2022F12A31H

Year ended 31 December 2023  #Z2023%128318 1k

£E

As at 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1A
Capitalised subsequent expenditure E &R B R E K
Transfer from property, plantand ~ #%% « BE R

equipment REEA
Transfer from lease receivable R ERKFIEE A
Transfer to lease receivables EEMAERWGE
Addition upon lease extension HHE R

Net losses from fair value adjustment 2 B 7 18 F5E

As at 31 December 2023

(i

M2023F12A31H

The Group’s investment properties are located
in Shenzhen, Lufeng, Haifeng, Luhe and
Xingning of the Guangdong Province and
Changsha of Hunan Province of the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties falls under level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy.

As at 31 December 2023, part of the buildings
were secured against certain long-term bank
borrowings (note 32).

Note
i

(vi)

(iv)

Right-of-use
Buildings assets Total
¥ EREEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT  AR®TT  AR®TR

1,072,400 1,315,378 2,387,778

153 1,938 2,091
- (134,428) (134,428)
(24,953) (196,924) (221,877)

- (348,317) (348,317)
1,047,600 637,647 1,685,247
1,047,600 637,647 1,685,247
4,981 743 5,724
199,200 s 199,200

5 30,274 30,274

- (16,777) (16,777)

- 50,468 50,468
(97,151) (58,853) (156,004)
1,154,630 643,502 1,798,132

AR R i P B R
Yl Y Y EAREE R
mEEY -

AEERENE T ATEBRAT
E B R EIE -

M2023F 12 A31H » & T & H
IRITIE A S D E TR (M3
32) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Group leased out Changsha store
to a third party. Accordingly, the Group
transferred the assets with a carrying amount
of RMB171,661,000 from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties at fair
value of RMB199,200,000 and recognised an
increase in fair value of RMB27,539,000 as
revaluation surplus within other reserves.

(iv)  The decrease was mainly due to that the Group
and the lessor of Shiyan Store entered into
the early termination agreement of the lease
agreement in 2022, and the right-of-use assets
of investment properties of RMB348,317,000
was derecognised.

(v) In 2023, the Group modified the lease
agreement of a store to extend the lease term
of 5 years in Nanshan District, Shenzhen from a
third party successfully. As a result, the right-of-
use assets had an addition of RMB50,468,000,
which is the same as the lease liability.

(vi) Right-of-use assets which had been subleased
out under financing leases were transfer
from investment properties to finance lease
receivables. The finance lease receivables were
transfer to right-of-use assets upon the early
termination of finance lease arrangement.

The Group’s investment properties represented
owned shopping malls and leased ones as ROU
and are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties through leasing.

The Group’s investment properties were valued as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 by an independent
and professionally qualified valuer who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations of the investment
properties valued. The investment properties, carried
at fair value, were valued by using unobservable
inputs of fair value hierarchy Level 3. There were no
transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
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(i) BHZE2023F12A31HILEE -
AEBBEADIEHBETFE=ZH -
Bt AEEBEREEAARE
171,661,000t EEMRTHE - &
ERREEEAFEEAARE
199,200,000 B W % + WAL E
thREEPERA T EEENARE
27,539,000TLIE B E M & A ©

(iv) BWALHERZEAREBER20224F 8

Ea%ﬁﬁﬂ/\ BRI RO

C R IERERIREMEFAEE
E/\Eﬁ%m&sw,oooﬁ o

(v) TA2023F @ AEEKINEE =T
R TEME BN FRIIEELE
JEERSF A E R o B - 1
hofsE A B E A R 50,468,000
TEAEAEMRR -

(vii BMEHSEEBERHNERREEHRR
BEYEE A \RWBERER - BI
MEHEFNBERELHERNK
LREBSERESE -

AEENREMEAERELAREKA
BEYDTRONBEEYE  HSANRE
BAEHEEBHEARENEEL LR
BRI A B e

AKEE 2 EYFEN2023F & 20224F
12A31HEBYEESERIGEMETT
HE FRERUNHABREER - I
AT EREVEMNE ZHELER -
IARAFEARNKREDERABRAFES
WEB =MW T A B AB#EITHE o

AEFNLEE— - = - =R
i o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Valuations are based on:

Direct comparison approach assuming sale of each of
these properties in its existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession. By making reference to sales
transactions as available in the relevant market,
comparable properties in close proximity have
been selected and adjustments have been made to
account for the difference in factors such as locations
and property size; and

Income approach which using discounted cash
flow (“DCF”) projections taking into account the
current rents of the property interests and the
reversionary potentials of the tenancies, term yield
and reversionary yield are then applied respectively to
derive the market value of the property as significant
unobservable inputs and showed as below:

Term yields Reflecting current market
assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of
cash flows

Reversionary yields  Based on current and expected
future market conditions after
expiry of any current lease

Market rents Based on location, type and
quality of the properties and
supported by the terms of
any existence lease, other
contracts and external
evidence such as current
market rents for similar
properties

fRETIRR T BT :

RABERLEE  BREAEVEZER
BAREHE - R2EBAREMBENAE
HBHER D - BRI RN A AL
BYMEIRUERMERBRERZNZ
RELHAR K

RAYWmZERFTRRESR((FRRE
mIER - XEEIMENERES
REDHEANENEENEREN
HIR W s R ANE R s KRG H %W E
WMZEBEER/EATAIBEBAE -
NP

EfkEE RREFTEHRSRE
OB ] TN HEE M RO AT

B

kR EREEREQDEER
B E AR B R SR T 5 R
L

migHEE  ERVEOME - B

HE  YRAEAREM

S & - HhamMmIMR

78 iR S as (I ansE LY

ENEMMSHES)

\

i
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Unobservable Range of Relationship of unobservable

Description inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
it FABREHAE FABERABEEE FAEEMABEAFTENER
Owned shopping Term vyields 4.5%-6.5% The higher the term yields,

malls and leased  FHIME X (2022: 3%-6.5%) the lower the fair value

ones as ROU HRWm RS - AT ERE
BEEYDHOM

THEMEAFERE Reversionary yields 5%-7% The higher the reversionary yields, the

iz [0l 57 I 25 (2022: 4.5%-7.5%) lower the fair value

EHEKEEES - A FESE

Market rents (RMB/ 33-294 The higher the market rents,
Square meter/month)  (2022: 33-299) the higher the fair value
mi5HEE msHels 2 TEES

(T/FHK/A)

These unobservable inputs correlate to each other.
Term yields are typically lower than reversionary

yield given the lower cashflow risk and market 25 K
uncertainties. Reversionary yield should theoretically g
tie with market rents, if an above-market market rent AE

adopted, the reversionary yield should be higher as

well to reflect the cashflow realisation risks.

Rental income ME A
Direct operating expenses from HMEEERS WAL
properties that generated rental EESEER

income

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2022: nil).
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\

BUTAERNBAREEE - &1058
SRAREBENTS T HEEN - BRI
BEERNEREKGEER - BERmtL O
mEREZETISHESEN - MRER
RMEHHSEE  BRKREERD

R - MRRESREHRRR -

ﬂl

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT

182,939 184,471
(118,310) (135,229)
64,629 49,242

R2023F12 A31H - AEBRI &
BEARREERRENRBELED
EF (20226 : f&) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

160

As at 1 January 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2022

Opening net book amount
Additions

Depreciation charge
Disposals (cost)

Disposals (depreciation)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023

Opening net book amount
Additions
Depreciation charge
Transfers to investment
properties(cost)
Transfers to investment
properties(depreciation)
Disposals (cost)
Disposals (depreciation)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

R202251A18
i
&t

RaRE

HZE2000F12831 81
Eg

EYEETE

jix s

i

HE(KE)

HE(HE)

FRRARE

R2022F12A31H
B3t

RaRE

HE020F12831 AL
kg

EEEFE

HE

TERE

EZREE (LK)

BERENZ(TE)

HE ()
HE(TE)

FEREFE
2023512A31A
A

&g

RERE

Machinery ~ Furniture
and  and other Motor  Leasehold Right of
Buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles improvement  use assets Others Total
BRR BE
B HERRE  HftRB RE  NERE  RRREE it a3t
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR
247,498 28,086 26,415 5,929 129,625 5,544 2,044 445,141
22,058) (26,907) (19,098) (6,191)  (128,916) (912) (1457)  (204,5%9)
225,440 1179 7317 738 709 4632 587 240,602
225,440 1179 7317 738 709 4632 587 240,602
- 1818 16 178 - 2,018 106 4,136
(391) (1,280) (1542 630) 422) (1922 (187) (9.954)
(31,161) (1,230 (15,548 - S (3,743) (39) (62,078)
1,975 798 12,774 - - 1,283 248 17,078
192,283 1,285 3017 286 27 2,268 358 199,784
216,337 28,674 10,883 6,107 129,625 3819 1,754 397,199
(24,054) (27,389) (7,866) (6,821 (129,338 (1,561) (1396 (197415
192,283 1285 3017 286 287 2,268 358 199,784
192,283 1,285 3,017 286 27 2,268 358 199,784
- 334 19 5 265 1,645 - 2,268
(755) (450) (494) (95) (45) (1,460) (158) (3,457)
(182,678) - - - - - - (182,678)
1,017 - - - - - - 1,017
- (821) (409) - (131) (1,509) (720) (3,590)
- 79 387 - 51 887 676 2,780
19,867 1,121 2,520 196 41 1,831 156 26,124
33,658 28,186 10,493 6,112 129,759 3,956 1,034 213,198
(13,791) (27,059) (7,973 (5,916) (129,332 (2,125) (878) (187,074
19,867 1,127 2,520 196 a1 1,831 156 26,124
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

As at 1 January 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2022
Opening net book amount
Additions

Amortisation charge

Disposal

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2023
Opening net book amount
Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2023
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount
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20221 H1H
B AR
R EEH

SRERE

HZE2022F12A31HILFEE
FYREEFE

RNE

BIHEA

FHEEFE

FHEBRMEFE
A2022%12H31H
B AR

BT

BREFE
HZE2023F12A31BLLEE
FYREFE
HiHE A
FHEBRMEFE
A2023%F12H31H
R AR

RETEEY

AR R E

Computer
software
BT

RMB’000
ARBTT

36,587
(32,259)

4,328

4,328
340
(3,647)
(524)

497

36,404
(35,907)

497

497
(175)

322

36,404
(36,082)

322
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The Group’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares/
registered capital that are held directly by the Group,
and the proportion of ownership interests held equals
the voting rights held by the Group. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal
place of business.

Principal
Place of incorporation  activities and
Name of entity and form of legal entity  place of operation
Balf AR IEEH
EREE REEREN RE$HY

TXHEHYAEBER2023F12 318K
MIEBAR - FRBEIEAI  HBRAEH
AEEEEFEZLER FMELE
B - BFTR B B EERLOIZERN
REBPFE 2ILERE o dEfa s s
BRMAETBLE M -

Particulars Ownership interest
of issued or held by
registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
share capital held by the Group interests
BESE] FRERAZ FERERERL
AR ERgER ERERE

2023 2022 2023 2022

Shirble Department Store Investment Hong Kong, limited liabiity  Investment holding in HKD1 100% 100% - S
Limited (“Shirble Hong Kong”) company Hong Kong
REASRERRAD(HFEERE]) E% ARAW REBETRELER A7
Shirble Department Store (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding in USD1,200 100% 100% - S
Limited company Hong Kong
AEAE(BR)ARAT &% BRAW REBETRELER 120057
Shenzhen Shirble Department Store The PRC, wholly foreign ~ Operation and HKD527,407,400 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. (“Shirble Shenzhen”) owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC

Shenzhen Shirble Chain Store Limited
Liability Company
(“Shirble Chain Store”)

A iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂ
(I

i

Uﬂ‘ﬁﬂ UII"?

7
b

Changsha Shirble Department Store
Limited Liability Company

hE - 2ELR

The PRC, limited fiabilty

company

RE - BRAF

The PRC, limited fiabilty

company

RE - ARAT

RAEEERNERFEE 527,407 40087

Operation and RMB100,000,000
management of
department stores in
the PRC
RAEEENERERE A%
100,000,0007
Operation and RMB30,000,000
management of
department stores in
the PRC
R EEER AR#30,000,0007
ERREE

100%

100%

100%

100%
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity  place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
AL IBEH BEIES AEEERL FERERERL
ER4B REEERA REEHY kRS ERERE ErRERE
2023 2022 2023 2022
Shenzhen Ruizhuo Trading Company The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Trading in the PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Limited company
MR EEHERAT B8 BRAA RPEETE ABR%10,000,0007
Dongguan Shirble Department Store The PRC, limited liability ~ Operation of department  RMB30,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company stores in the PRC
RETREBRARAR PE - BRAA RPESEEEE  ARH30,0000007T
Shanwei Shirble Department Store The PRC, wholly foreign ~ Operation and HKD230,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
NETHEREARAR hE - RELE RPEFENERARE 230,0000007
Luhe Shirble Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC, wholly foreign ~ Operation and RMB200,000,000 100% 100% - -
(“Luhe Shirble”) owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
EiTREREARAR(EARE])  RE 2MEMX RAEEENERERE A%
200,000,0007
LuFeng Shirble Department Store The PRC, wholly foreign ~ QOperation and RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. (‘Lufeng Shirble”) owned enterprises management of
department stores in
the PRC
EERERERRAA(EYAE]) hE - RELE RPEEEN AR%10,00,0007T
EERRE
Baotong (BVI) Company Limited British Virgin Island, limited  Investment holding in USD1 100% 100% - -
liability company British Virgin Island
iBRREE ERAT  REBRLHEER 1%
REZR
Baoke Trading (BVI) Company Limited British Virgin Island, limited  Investment holding in USD1 0% 100% - -
liability company British Virgin Island
iBRREE ERAT  REERLHEER 1%
REZR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity  place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
AL IBEH BEIES AEEERL FEREREF
ER4B REEERA REEHY kRS ERERE ErRERE
2023 2022 2023 2022
Baotong E-commerce (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liabity  Trading in Hong Kong HKD1 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company
BEERETARARLA Bk BRAT RERENES 137
Shenzhen Qianhai Baotong E-commerce  The PRC, limited liability ~ Trading in the PRC RMB500,000 100% 100% - -
Company Limited company
SRS TERERDA M ERAT RPEETE AR500,0007T
Shenzhen Shirble Information Consulting ~ The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of consulting ~ RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company services in the PRC
AT HAERAA M ERAT ReEREERRE  AR%1,0000007T
Shenzhen Baocheng Technology The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of consulting  RMB100,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co,, Ltd. company services in the PRC
AITERHRARAT T8 AREEAR R ERHERRE A%
100,000,0007t
Shenzhen Baoruntong Creative Design The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Decoration design in the  RMB200,000,000 100% 100% - o
Co,, Ltd. company PRC
AITEEREIERHERART T8 AREEAT RABETRERE A%
200,000,000
Shenzhen i-Shirble Business Development  The PRC, limited liability ~ Trading in the PRC RMB1,650,000 100% 100% - S
Co,, Ltd. company
MIEFEEEERERAA T8 AREEAT RAEETES ARE1,650,0007
Shenzhen Baolong Business Development  The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Provision of consulting ~ RMB10,000,000 100% 100% - -

Co., Ltd.
M EEAFERERAE

company

RE - ARAALA

services in the PRC
RPEREERNRE  AR%10,000,0007
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Particulars Ownership interest
Principal of issued or held by
Place of incorporation  activities and registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
Name of entity and form of legal entity  place of operation share capital  held by the Group interests
AL IBEH BEIES AEEERL FEREREF
ER4B REEERA REEHY kRS ERERE ErRERE
2023 2022 2023 2022
Shenzhen Baoxin Software Development ~ The PRC, limited liability ~ Software developmentin - RMBG6,600,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company the PRC
MITEREHREERAA T8 AREEAR RPEETHAFEE  ARE6,600,0007
Shenzhen Chenghe Business Management  The PRC, limited liability ~ Trading in the PRC RMB1,000,000 0% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. company
AmRAEEEEERAT hE - AREEAT RPEETE ARE1,000,0007T
CGosmic Favour Limited British Virgin Island, limited  Investment holding in USD1 100% 100% - -
liability company British Virgin Island
LERRAT EBRREE ERAF  NEERAHEES %7
RARR
Sibo Culture Limited (a) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Trading in Hong Kong HKD1 0% 100% - S
company
BEXLARARR) &% ARRELA RERENES 18T
Xuyi Shirble Hanlian Real Estate Co., Ltd. () The PRG, limited liabiity ~ Property development ~ RMB280,000,000 0% 85% - 15%
company business in the PRC
FhmEaltEaRAR hE - EREAAT RAEETRLE A%
HRER 280,000,007
Shenzhen Shirble New Retail Investment  The PRC, limited liability ~ Operation and RMB6,000,000 0% 100% - S
Co. Ltd. company management of
department stores in
the PRC
RENEERE(MIERAR hE - AREEAT RPEgEN AR¥6,000,0007T
EERE
Good Virtue (BV)) Investments Limited British Virgin Island, limited  Investment holding in USD1 0% 100% - S
liability company British Virgin Island
EBREE ERAR  NEERAHEES %7
RARR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

166

Principal
Place of incorporation  activities and
Name of entity and form of legal entity  place of operation
BalEAR L IBEH
L1240 REEERA REEHY

Particulars Ownership interest
of issued or held by
registered  Ownership interest non-controlling
share capital  held by the Group interests
BEIES AEEERL FERERERL
kRS ERERE ErRERE

2023 2022 2023 2022

Opulent Sino (BVI) Developments Limited

British Virgin Island, limited
liability company

Investment holding in
British Virgin Island

EBRRES BRAF  REBRABSENRE
B
Lawbo Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited liability  Investment holding in
company Hong Kong
BEREARAT Bk BRAT RERETRERR

Shirble Shajing Investment Company

Hong Kong, limited liability

Investment holding in

Limited company Hong Kong
AESHRARRAR Bk BRAT RERETRERR
Shenzhen Shirble Enterprise Management  The PRC, limited liabiity ~ Property development

Co., Ltd. company business in the PRC
MITRELEERERAA T8 AREEAR RPEETRLE

¥REH
Zhuhai Xiangyao Real Estate Development  The PRG, limited fiabiity ~ Property development

company

business in the PRC

USD1 0% 100% - S

£
HKD! 100% 100% - 5
147
HKD! 0% 100% - 5
187

RMB20,000,000 100% 100% - S

AR%20,000,0007

RMB78,000,000 100% 100% - S

Company
HEHRRERSERAT

(@)

PE - AREALA
LREH

Sibo Culture Limited (“Sibo”) and Xuyi Shirble
Hanlian Real Estate Co., Ltd (“Xuyi shirble”) were
disposed in 2023.

Baoke Trading (BVI) Company Limited,
Shenzhen Chenghe Business Management Co.,
Ltd, Shenzhen Shirble New Retail Investment
Co. Ltd, Good Virtue (BVI) Investments Limited,
Opulent Sino (BVI) Developments Limited and
Shirble Shajing Investment Company Limited
was deregistered in 2023.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were
no non-controlling interests that were material
to the Group.

RPEETEHE

ARH78,000,0007T
(@ BEXBERAR(EME])EEF

MR EBBILEAR AR ([
EER2023FHERE °

Baoke Trading(BVI)Company
Limited » RN R 515 % & 12
ERAF  mEHNTERECR
) BBRAF ~ Good Virtue (BVI)
Investments Limited * Opulent Sin
(BVI) Developments Limited * 5%
EVHKREARAFDR2023F
e o

R2023F 22022412 A31H » &
SEERBEARIERRER -
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The Group holds the following financial instruments: AREFEUTERIA
At
amortised
Financial assets Note cost At FVPL Total
R RATE
SREE Hat BAGt & FFAEE BEr

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETRT

2022
Financial assets at FVPL BAFETAEBRE 2
TREE 20 - 4,288 4,288
Trade and other receivables & 5 K H ith g g 518
excluding prepayments (TBRFEENRIA) 21 453,435 = 453,435
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIRITER 24 16,870 = 16,870
Cash and cash equivalents BeMkBEEEEY 25 77,954 - 77,954
548,259 4,288 552,547
2023
Financial assets at FVPL BATEGAERZ S
MEE 20 - 4,350 4,350
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H {th fg g 518
excluding prepayments (TBREENARIA) 21 185,381 - 185,381
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHRITER 24 17,045 = 17,045
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIRESZEY 25 50,127 - 50,127
252,553 4,350 256,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The Group holds the following financial instruments

(continued):

Financial liabilities

TRAE

2022

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities

Borrowings

2023

Lease liabilities

Trade and other payables excluding
non-financial liabilities

Borrowings

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class
of financial assets mentioned above.

HERE

B 5 REMREMNFIEA
(TREFTRARE)

f& X

HERE

B 5 MEMEMNRIR
(TREFTRARE)

f& %

Note

et

29

32

29

32

AEEFBEUATERMTEAGE) -

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R
RATEZ
tHAE
RMB’000
ARETTT

691,846

126,350
586,058

1,404,254

644,113

105,978
556,473

1,306,564

E@&%H REEYzH&ARERRRAS L
PemEEIKREIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(@) The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred (a) AEBRLMEHREENMELRSE
tax liabilities of the Group is as follows: MEBEITWOT :
2023 2022
Deferred tax assets (i): EEFTSHEE()
— To be recovered within -ARE1218 A
12 months 1,594 -
- To be recovered after ~FREZ 1218 A
12 months 2,236 42,001
3,830 42,001
2023 2022
Deferred tax liabilities (ii): IEIEFT SR B &)
- To be recovered within -ARE121E A
12 months - =
— To be recovered after ~FFiR1E1& 1218 A
12 months 80,394 85,867
80,394 85,867
()  Deferred tax assets: iy BEEMEHREE :
2023 2022

The balance comprises temporary #4ZEE 5 ZRHRR -
differences attribute to:

— Depreciation on property, - - BER
plant and equipment RETE 476 573
- Accrued expenses, deferred -EETAY C BEWA
revenue and others MEA 885 3,101
~ lease liabilities -HEAE 161,028 172,961
— Impairment provision - B 2,469 38,327
164,858 214,962
Offset of deferred tax liabilities MR B AR TE BE M IR AT
pursuant to set-off provisions Fristi e Ea i (161,028) (172,961)
Net deferred tax assets it & EF5E 3,830 42,001
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(@ The analysis of deferred tax assets and (@) AEERELEMSHEERELMRE
deferred tax liabilities of the Group is as follows HREEITOT(E) :
(continued):

(i)  Deferred tax liabilities iy BIEMSHERE:
2023 2022

The balance comprises temporary # % IERFEZERP
differences attribute to:

— Fair value change of -EMERN
investment properties NEEE 56,771 68,375
- Accrual on rental income R EFFFTER
based on the straight-line FEETAE S WA
method 5,690 7,671
— ROU and lease receivables AR SRS
from adoption of IFRS 16 Y81 1657AY
FRAEMEE
FEMGR 178,961 182,782
241,422 258,828
Offset of deferred tax assets MR 3 AR T B S IR AT
pursuant to set-off provisions Fiiefi & EEHE (161,028) (172,961)
Net deferred tax liabilities sl & &S558 80,394 85,867
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(b)  The movements in deferred tax assets and b) FRELHRBBEENMBENED
liabilities during the year, without taking into (Rt MR —FB AR AL
consideration the offsetting of balances within BRI I -

the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Accrued
expenses, Depreciation
deferred  on property,

revenue and plantand  Impairment Lease
others  equipment provision liabilities Total
iR LES
BEWAR BER
Eft REHE HERE HESE @it

RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBIOO0  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
ARBTRL  ARMTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR

As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 718 12,009 1,005 17,450 251,485 281,949
(Chargea)/credited to profit or loss (5t AM8%)/REH#ES (8,908) 432) 20,877 (78,524) (66,987)
As at 31 December 2022 20225128318 3,101 573 38,327 172,961 214,962
As at 1 January 2023 202351 A1H 3,101 573 38,327 172,961 214,962
Charged to profit or loss TARR (2,216) (97) (35,858) (11,933) (50,104)
As at 31 December 2023 R2023512431R 885 476 2,469 161,028 164,858
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(c) The movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year, without taking
into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows
(continued):

© FRAELERBEENMABNED
CREF R F -5 AR AR A
BRIEEH) T - ()

Deferred tax liabilities

As at 1 January 2022 R2022F181A
Charged to profit or loss AR

As at 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H

As at 1 January 2023 20231818
Charged to profit or loss FABR

As at 31 December 2023  742023F12831H

EERERE

Accrual on ROU and

Fair value rental income lease

change of based onthe receivables

investment  straight-line from adoption
properties method of IFRS 16 Total

®A

Qi3 pd

BERA)

REKT F165:1

REMED FENES EREN
ATESE HEWA HERYKH #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
68,748 17,766 352,070 438,584
(373) (10,095) (169,288) (179,756)
68,375 7,671 182,782 258,828
68,375 7,671 182,782 258,828
(11,604) (1,981) (3,821) (17,406)
56,771 5,690 178,961 241,422

172
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law in
the PRC, 10% withholding tax is levied on foreign
investors (5% for foreign investors who are registered
in Hong Kong provided they meet certain criteria) in
respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January
2008. No deferred tax liabilities (2022: Nil) have not
been recognised, in respect of no retained profits
(2022:Nil) generated by its PRC entities subsequent
to 31 December 2009, because the directors do
not intend to declare dividends out of such retained
profits to overseas companies in the foreseeable
future.

As at 31 December 2023, certain subsidiaries of
the Group have not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses carried forward
of RMB456,158,000 (2022: RMB637,534,000)
which will expire within 5 years under the current
tax regulation. The cumulative tax losses have not
been recognised as a deferred tax asset as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity.
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BHRECEMGEE  INRIEEEARM
GNVE D ER2008F 1 A1 H 1B BRERAY % A
FrEE A BIRR B 0 IR 1S 10% TE F0 8 (5t
BEBELMIINREEEMS F WETEHE
TR - BHET5%) © $L2009F 12 A
SIHEBEHEHARERREELERE G
(2022%F : %) @ MERERNELERE
BfE(2022%F : &)  REARESFEET
A RARYEBREBRFAEINARE
KA B o

R20283F 12 A31H  AEEETH
BRI RMBIZEER TR ERG
RoFREBZ R HIEBEBEELEE A
R 456,158,0007T (2022 F : AR
637,534,000 ) RIELEF B EE
AR BB TKRIERIEEH S EEE
KBRS AR 2K P R i A BT AR AR S 18
B RUEERRTHIEBEAERLER
HEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

174

As at 1 January 2022
Fair value change recognised in

#202241 A18
RIBHRN A FEEH

profit or loss (Note 8) (B1#%8)
Currency translation difference  HNEHRE =48
Disposal HE

As at 31 December 2022

As at 1 January 2023
Currency translation difference

As at 31 December 2023

(a)

R2022512831H

R2023F181H
SNEIE EE

A2023F12H31H

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group disposed of its investment in
the 1,320,000,000 ordinary shares of
TFG International Group Limited at a total
consideration of RMB 54,123,000 which
resulted in a loss of RMB53,342,000.

Listed
Unlisted equity
equity securities
securities (a) Total
ELEH tm
BRAFESE RAES(a) e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®BTT AR®BTE
3,924 97,131 101,055
- 10,334 10,334
364 = 364
- (107,465) (107,465)
4,288 - 4,288
4,288 - 4,288
62 - 62
4,350 - 4,350

(a) #HZE2022F12A31HILEE » &
SEBREARKS4,123,000
JC & B3 A #91,320,000,000 8%
ELEBREBRER AR T ARE
& EAE 1B A R 53,342,000

ﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

As of 31 December 2023

M20235F12H31H

Current Non-current Total
ENHA 3k BN & et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tn AR%®Txn
Amount due from a related JFE Uk 28 5 3R
party (Note 35(e)(ii) (M1 7£35(e)(ii)) - 336,164 336,164
Receivables from operating & E T E WG IE (D)
leases (b) 25,212 5,079 30,291
Receivables from finance R & & FE U IE (o)
leases (c) 16,988 97,653 114,641
Interest receivables FE USRI B, 171 - 171
Lease deposits HEZe 45 21,089 21,134
Value-added tax recoverable Al [el 7 1EEF 22,353 - 22,353
Other receivables E b fE U SR IR 6,671 = 6,671
71,440 459,985 531,425
Less: provision for impairment & : J{BEEIBEEETIE
loss allowance (Kt:E3.1(b))
(Note 3.1(b)) (6,378) (339,666) (346,044)
Financial assets at amortised REENTFTE
cost TREE 65,062 120,319 185,381
Prepayments SENE /el - 78 78
Total trade and other B 5 R E M ER
receivables TR 65,062 120,397 185,459
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

As of 31 December 2022
72022128311
Current  Non-current Total
BIER FERNER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT AREBTT

Trade receivables (a) Z 5 EWFKIE () 2,336 - 2,336
Amount due from a related JE UK B8 58 5 FRIE
party (Note 35(e)(ii) (H15£35(e) i) 299,430 47,922 347,352
Receivables from operating T E W ERIE (D)
leases (b) 28,098 15,942 44,040
Receivables from finance EhE T E EURIA(C)
leases (c) 30,986 121,210 152,196
Interest receivables eI B 170 - 170
Lease deposits HEeERe 66 19,852 19,918
Value-added tax recoverable Al ] 2z I {E L 21,284 - 21,284
Other receivables b= A E Q] 19,448 - 19,448
401,818 204,926 606,744
Less: provision for impairment & : V(B E B EETIR
loss allowance (Ktzt 3.1(b))
(Note 3.1(b)) (130,157) (23,152) (153,309)

Financial assets at amortised REENAFTEZ

cost TREE 271,661 181,774 453,435
Prepayments (d) TE FRIA () 318 66,164 66,482
Total trade and other E5 RHEMELK

receivables IR 271,979 247,938 519,917
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The trade receivables are receivables of sales
from corporate customers.

The aging analysis of the trade receivables of
the Group based on invoice date is as follows:

0 - 30 days TE30K

The Group applies the IFRS simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which was
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. As at 31 December 2023, no
impairment loss allowance was made based on
the management’s assessment (2022: nil) (note
3.1(b)).

All trade receivables are denominated in RMB
and their fair values approximated their carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2023.
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BHRIFARREEETFHH
SRR -

REZZAH  KNEBNEH R
RIBRE DT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

- 2,336

AN 5 B e AR BURR B 15 3k 5 2 RIS 1E
FETEEBERAEE  EAMA
EHEWGRENEPE SRR
# o 202312 A31H © RIS
BEFE  TEEDREBBREE
(2022 : &) (KI5E3.1(b)) °

FIEE S EWFEIAREE -
HENF(EEEN2023F12 A31H
HEREEMRE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Right-of-use assets for property leases which
had been subleased out under operating leases
were recognised as receivables from operating
leases, including the accrual on rental income
based on the straight-line method.

The aging analysis of receivables from operating
leases of the Group based on due date is as
follows:

KEMETENHENYEEERR
REERERIERRKEHER
WEKIE - BREESEA -

RIBZHE  ARENKEHER
WoRIBRER D ITIAT -

As at 31 December

Mm12831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Current BN ER 22,761 30,685
0 - 30 days FE30K 1,348 2,598
31 -90 days 31290K 776 2,998
91 — 365 days 91E 365K 2,495 4,822
More than 365 days B ia365K 2,911 2,937

30,291 44,040

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
IFRS 9.

As at 31 December 2023, a provision of
RMB8,115,000 (2022: RMB16,191,000) was
made against the gross amount of receivables
from operating lease (Note 3.1(b)).

AEBERABERYBERESLEE
AR E AL T ERT B IR AR
ERMEXL -

#H 1F2023F12 A31H » #hE UL
CHEREBRBETREBEAR
#8,115,0007T (20224 : AR
16,191,0007t) (F§5E£3.1(b)) °
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Right-of-use assets for property leases which MERETEsHEHNWEREFER
had been subleased out under financing leases BEERRABEMERIHIEA -
were recognised as receivables from finance

leases.

The table below analyses the Group’s gross TRIDENSHRERRNEBEH
investment in finance leases by relevant maturity RARmOMAEENMERER
groupings at the end of each reporting period: BaaEE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Finance lease receivables B &R E el I 132,855 179,015
Unguaranteed residual values TERBFGEEB 7,931 7,931
Gross investment in finance leases BMEHEREEEE 140,786 186,946
Less: unearned finance income B RBRERREE UL A (26,145) (34,750)
Net investment in finance leases BEHERE FEE 114,641 152,196
Less: accumulated allowance for W REDRERE

impairment (1,765) (1,368)
Finance lease receivables — net BE T E W FRE 112,876 150,828
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s gross

investment in finance leases by relevant maturity
groupings at the end of each reporting period:

Gross investment in finance leases FIEAREIREHEZE

— Within 1 year —1FR

— Between 1 and 2 years —122% 7
- Between 2 and 3 years —2FE3F 7
- Between 3 and 4 years —3FAF 7
- Between 4 and 5 years —4E5F 7
— Later than 5 years —BESF

As at 31 December 2022, deposit of
RMB62,950,000 for the acquisition of the land
was included in the non-current portion of
prepayments. Save for abovementioned, the
remaining balance of the non-current portion of
prepayment represented the Group’s cash paid
to third parties for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets.

(&)
TRIGENEREHRNBEZS
BapmoNmAEENRERER

B

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

22,578 39,172
19,889 20,382
19,929 20,502
19,667 20,631
15,932 20,356
42,791 65,903
140,786 186,946

R2022%F12 A31H @ WHE %
& AR #62,950,000T 2 5T AFE
RIERIERNEREE D » B Eill &
AN - FER SRIEFERNER IR D MR T 45
HIEANEERBEVE  BE MK
BAREBREESNTE=ZTHR

N
& e
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

Merchandise held for resale BIEEENE O
Allowance for obsolescence PREE mIEE

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as
follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZERAEB
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As at 31 December

Mm12831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

5,814 6,317
(2,782) (3,189)
3,032 3,128

EEREAL W ABRZZHEEHES
MR

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR

6,667 5,196
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Carrying amount of properties held for
sale
Less: accumulated provision of
impairment (Note 8)

In 2021, the Group completed the acquisition
agreement to purchase the entire equity interest in
Zhuhai Xiangyao which is a real estate development
company. The properties held for sale of
RMB384,622,000 was recognized.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
accumulated provision of impairment loss recognised
on the properties held for sale was RMB 130,622,000
(2022: RMB34,622,000).

As at 31 December 2023, the properties held for
sale of RMB254,000,000 were pledged to secure
against certain long-term bank borrowing (2022:
RMB350,000,000) (note 32).

FHEMEZREE

As at 31 December

- REHRER R (A1E8)

Mm12831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
384,622 384,622
(130,622) (34,622)
254,000 350,000

R20214F » AEBEKBBEEA—/H
E i ER N F ISR 2 I E R UK
BiHhz ERBEAFLEWEARE
384,622,0007T °

HE2023F12A31BIEFEE » £
EVMEBRRAZAREEBEEAARE
130,622,000 (2022: A R ¥ 34,622,000
JT) ©

M2023F 128318 » & T REEITHE
A A R #254,000,000 7T 8 13 H &£ 4
A (20225 + ARBES50,000,000
70) (fFEE32) °
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARBTT

Bank deposits with initial terms of X EHRBBE=EAKN

over three months (a) RITEN () 16,797 16,500
Others (b) HAh(b) 248 370
17,045 16,870

As the issuer of the prepaid cards, the Group
should have restricted deposits proportionate
to the prepaid cards issued in a certain bank,
which is required by the PRC regulator. The
balance of restricted deposits for prepaid cards
was RMB16,797,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB16,500,000). The effective interest
rate for the restricted deposits of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was 1.80%
(2022: 1.80%).

EBEMRMEITA @ ZEEEAR
BRREERERTNE BT
GABBTENREEN—I9
EBZREITFE - R2023F 12 A
318 * BN REXR TR
B AREE16,797,0007T (20224 -
AR#16,500,0007T) ° & Z=2023
F12HAB1BLEFE AEEXR
H1F A EFRF X 21.80% (2022
F:1.80%) °

(b) Certain bank deposits were restricted to be (o) AEEBTRITTROEAZRE
used by the Group due to the legal cases as TSR A KI 6T I ER AR R
disclosed in note 36. o

(c) The Group considered that there is no material () AEERBBRITFRNEREEH

credit risk inherent in the balance of bank
deposits. The directors of the Company
considered that the fair value of these bank
deposits approximated their carrying amount as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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EARBRITTEKR - KABIEER
BF20234 2022912 A31H -
ZERTHERN AT ELEERmE
a5 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12831 B ILFE

As at 31 December

Mm12831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
50,127 77,954

Cash at bank and on hand RITHENFERS

The cash and cash equivalent are denominated in
RMB, USD and HKD.

As at 1 January 2023 20231810
- Disposal of equity investments —FERERR S
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%12531A

184

BeMASEEMINUARE  ETR

FBITAHE

Number of Ordinary

ordinary share Share
shares capital premium Total
EERYE BERRE R1AEE @t
(thousand) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(TR) AR%Tr AR¥®Tr AR¥Tx

(Note a)

(M a)
2,495,000 213,908 750,992 964,900
2,495,000 213,908 750,992 964,900
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

Shares
Number of Ordinary held for
ordinary share Share  share award
shares capital premium scheme Total
AR 17 2R
RESTE
LEREE  TARERR Rin&E # 1D st
(thousand) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(FR) AR®FTr ARETT ARETR ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hiet a) (Bt b)
As at 1 January 2022 20221818 2,495,000 213,908 750,992 (214) 964,686
Employees’ share award B ERD B E
scheme
- Disposal of shares held — B HEMR KRR
for restricted share award ~ #2EIst 2|69 ()
scheme - - - 214 214
As at 31 December 2022  A2022F12H31H 2,495,000 213,908 750,992 - 964,900

(@) The application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium
account are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

(o) Shares held for share award scheme
represented the award shares purchased for
purpose of the share award scheme adopted by
the Company.
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(a)

B aEERZERXASHE QA
EEE - RERSEBEQRZE
BROVEERANEEAI DK TAR

AR - EEREEES

MRS 2 B

& ARBEAEININEERE
EEBREPRHINNER -

FAA (D BERDAT B4 A RN FE LA
NERAH D 2B T 8IfE B 2 82

B A7
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

186

Currency  Share-based
Statutory Merger  Revaluation translation  compensation
reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve Other Total
Wk BER
HERE SHRE BfiER  NMARRG L Hfp Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(@ (b
As at 1 January 2022 R2022E1 51 156,600 107,372 174,197 4,087 214 2,385 444,855
Currency tranglation differences ~ SMEHREZE - - - (4,869) - - (4,869)
Forfeling of shares HERH - S = = 1) - (214
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12531H 156,600 107,372 174,197 (782) - 2,385 439,772
Currency translation differences  SMEHEZE - - - (2,185) - - (2,185)
ERERENZE
Revaluation of property, plant 0g - BERRE
and equipment upon transferto ~ B)ATEES
investment properties, net of tax  (AIRFE) - - 20,654 - - - 20,654
As at 31 December 2023 2023125318 156,600 107,372 194,851 (2967) - 2,385 458,241
(@) Statutory reserves were established in (@) JEERBIRIRAEET IR RER

accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of
the companies comprising the Group which
are incorporated in the PRC. Appropriations to
the reserves were approved by the respective
boards of directors’ meeting. For the entity
concerned, statutory reserves can be used to
make good previous years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into capital in proportion
to the existing equity interests of investors,
provided that the balance of the reserve after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the
entity’s registered capital. In 2023, no earnings
(2022: nil) was appropriated to statutory
reserve.

UREPEEMAIOEAERET
SRR ERMAEY - FEiE
AERSHBEESE S L EILE
BA - -HNEBRERNS AT
HURRBEATEFENEE(N
)W BEAIEREEER B RAERS
RILLBIEE ARG - MR B AR R ERTE
ERETONZEBIMERD
25% o PA2023F - WIAmE R X
(20224 M| o
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

In preparation for the listing of the shares in
the Company on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, certain
reorganisation steps (the “Reorganisation”)
were carried out. After the completion of the
Reorganisation, the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries comprising
the Group.

Merger reserve arising from the Reorganisation
represents the excess of the paid-in capital
of Shirble Department Store (Shenzhen) over
the consideration paid by the Company,
representing the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof.

As at 1 January 2022
Loss for the year

As at 31 December 2022

As at 1 January 2023
Loss for the year

As at 31 December 2023
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(o)

SEBEARFBRNNEERERS
PIAERDR IR ET  ARAFREHE
TETEAXR(EHR]) - RE
AT ARRRRAEEET
B A RAER AR

REAEENGHEBEREGR
(FIDMBE#RABHARR N
RENZE - AR AIAEITIAE
R EE

RMB’000

A2022%181H
FEEE

M2022512H31H

R2023F1A1H
FEER

7A2023%F12A31H

ARBTT

259,805
(556,117)

(296,312)

(296,312)
(340,982)

(637,294)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

Lease liabilities HERE

Less: Current portion of lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no items
that were not included in lease liabilities but would
lead to potential cash outflows in the future.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no lease
payments of lease contracts that had been signed but
had not yet been performed.

Lease deposits HEZRe

Other tax payables E b e R IE

Accrued wages and salaries EErIENH®

Trade payables (i) B Z) FE 1 5RIA()

Amount due to a related party B — 2 BEE T FUR
(Note 35(e)(i) (Bt7E35(e)(i)

FEETIRTT A B R 1K
(i - Hr3E32(b))

Accrued bank interest and penalty
((ii), Note 32(b))
Other payables and accruals

o HERENBHIR D

H s e FA N BT B

As at 31 December

Mm12831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
644,113 691,846
(53,681) (58,186)
590,432 633,660

M2023FE 12 A31H » KEFEEKRE A
HEBBEEURERARRRESREMNIE
H °

MR2023F 12 A31H » AEBEDEF:
BRABITHNHEESRMNEENFA -

As at 31 December

A12A31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
53,319 76,916
12,153 44,065
2,446 8,408
397 427
9 30
5,003 =
53,450 55,807
126,777 185,653
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

()  The aging analysis of the trade payables of the () REBEIHA  AEEHNEIENLR
Group based on due date was as follows: THERE T -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

0 - 30 days FTE30K 397 427

(i) The bank interest and penalty were accrued due (i) RITFBERIAXRDEFEHLEY
to the outstanding bank borrowing of Zhuhai EE RN ERAEBRITIER
Xiangyao,which was pledged by the properties BERMETIE ©

held for sale, was overdue.

(i) All trade and other payables are denominated (i) FBEESREMENKEAARE
in RMB and their fair values approximated their FHE - AR EREEN2023F12
carrying amounts as at 31 December 2023. AB1EMEREERS °

As at 31 December

Mm12A31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Advances received from customers (a) W EFPE K (a) 28,058 30,408
Deferred income (b) EIEHA (o) 78 702
28,136 31,110
(@) The amount mainly represented cash received () ZEeEFTBHEOCEEMNRAER
for prepaid cards sold. ® e
(b) The amount mainly represented the carrying b) ZeETIZERBEREEES 2K
amount of unredeemed awarded credits. M1 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

Non-current
Secured long-term bank borrowings (a)

FEENHR

Current BN HA

Current portion of secured long-term
bank borrowings (a) (b) (Note 23)
Secured short-term borrowing (c)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had
bank borrowings of RMB232 million repayable
in 2024 and secured by certain investment
properties (note 14). During the year ended
by 31 December 2023, the weighted average
effective interest rate was 6.04% (2022: 5.98%)
per annum. Subsequent to the year end,
the Group has successfully renewed these
borrowings with new facilities for a term of 3-7
years.

Zhuhai Xiangyao ‘s long-term bank loan of
RMB253,940,000 pledged by the properties
held for sale at the fair value of RMB
254,000,000 (2022: RMB 350,000,000) (note
23). The bank loan was expired on 1 November
2023. During the year ended by 31 December
2023, the weighted average effective interest
rate was 5.95% (2022: 5.67%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the secured
short-term borrowing was denominated in
RMB, secured by certain investment properties
(note 14) and was repayable within one year.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
weighted average effective interest rate was
6.52% (2022: 6.55%) per annum.

EEMRHRITEK ()

DR R HR T
ENHAEE 2 (a) (b)(A77£23)
B35 1 5T HA

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
63,333 266,361
456,968 274,498
36,172 45,199
493,140 319,697
556,473 586,058

MR2023F12A381H » "REERK
BITERBARB22EE T
ER2024F BB (M7E14) - E =
202312 A31HILFE » T
HEBRFEF R E6.04%(20224F -
598%) - RFEK%E + AEEBEE K
B HRZE R M BRERRAIE
T4 o

KEFRNERBEITERARE
253,940,0007C * A AFEAR
#:254,000,0007T (20224 : AR
350,000,000 7T ) B9 £F (1 & ¥ 3
YRR (M3E23) - RITERE R
2023411 A1HEIE - & E2023
F12A3MBLEFE - NEFEH
TR FF R 5595% (2022 4F :
5.67%) °

MR2023F 2202212 A31H » #%
BIIFGHERTUAREE - 1L
HETREMFEERB(MNE14) -
WHR—FREE - Bl=2023F12
AS1HIEFE - MEFHER

HZ 56.52% (20224 : 6.55%) °
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(d) At 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank (d) M20283%F12H31H @ AEEMIR
borrowings were repayable as follows: TREZREIRATHREES -

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Within 1 year 1F R 493,140 319,697

Between 1 and 2 years 122F 2 [ 6,667 203,028

Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 7 20,000 20,000

Over 5 years BidsF 36,666 43,333

556,473 586,058

() The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings () MITERZNEEEREHEQAFEM

approximated their fair values as these E RHAREEFRTIELE T
borrowings are mainly floating-rate borrowings. o
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Loss before income tax BRATETAIER (406,504) (669,263)
Adjustments for: THE
Depreciation (Note 15) WE(MF15) 3,457 9,954
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE(NE16)
(Note 16) 175 3,647

Net impairment losses on financial SRRENEER
assets (Note 9) WEEEFENE9) 204,492 157,210
Net impairment losses on prepayment B ZIBH)F(E E18
(Note 9) FE(ME9) 62,950 =
Net gain on disposal of subsidies HEMB R REFRE (7,245) -
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  BEKZEN
plant and equipment (Note 8) BE(ME8) 121 1,398
Loss on disposal of intangible assets HERFEENER
(Note 8) (Kiz#8) = 523
Loss on disposal of financial assets BATEFAERERZ
at FVPL HESREENES - 53,342
Loss on impairment of properties FHEMERBEEE
held for sale (Note 8) (Kiz#8) 96,000 -
Fair value change on FVPL (Note 8) BATEFAERD
NEEZE(H28) - (10,334)
Net fair value losses on investment REMELNTEBEBFE
properties (Note 14) (KizE14) 156,004 221,877
Interest income (Note 11) FSWA(HEE11) (18,476) (10,737)
Interest expenses (Note 11) SR (A1) 68,642 84,598
Rent concession (Note 8) He B (Hizs) = (8,289)
Loss from the change of sublease FREMREs
agreement (Note 8) BB (M) = 89,223
(Gain)/Loss from early termination and ~ 12RIRIEREEHRE Y
modification of leases (Note 8) (Mzx) /BB (HF8) (30,593) 164,107
Changes in working capital (excluding BBECEEY(TREES
the effect of currency translation B BRAS NS E = FH
differences on consolidation): TE):
Inventories "E 96 2,778
Trade and other receivables Z 5 M E MR IE 62,445 47,496
Trade and other payables B o5 NEMbENFIE (85,164) (7,7295)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SR HIRITEFUR 122 12,107
Net cash generated from operations KEEBMEANRSFHE 106,522 141,912
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from
sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

RIRERERA  HEWE  BE
RBREBZAEHRARE

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
Net book amount disposal of HEWE BEK
property, plant and equipment REREREEE
(Note 15) (K1E15) 188 32,540
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  HENIRED
plant and equipment (Note 8) BB (A Ets) (121) (1,398)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HE%E  KE K
plant and equipment BRABFTISRIA 67 31,142
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
BR HEEE @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETR ARETR
Debt as at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 A1 HEH 656,851 1,006,053 1,662,904
Cash flows HeRE (70,793) (122,849) (193,642)
Interest expenses on operating EAERAKLEHE
leases as the lessee (Note 11) FEHZ(MiE11) = 46,286 46,286
Effect of rent concession (Note 8) & BRMFZE (f1:78) - (8,289) (8,289)
Effect of early termination and RARIEREERE
modification of leases )7 - (231,373) (231,373)
Effect of recognition of lease MERRNTE - 2,018 2,018
Debt as at 31 December 2022  #2022512H831 HHNER 586,058 691,846 1,277,904
Debt as at 1 January 2023 20231 A1AEHR 586,058 691,846 1,277,904
Cash flows ReneE (29,585) (102,076) (131,661)
Interest expenses on operating ERABALEHE
leases as the lessee (Note 17) FERIZ (MaE11) - 33,228 33,228
Effect of early termination and RAKEREEHEN
modification of leases e - 19,470 19,470
Effect of recognition of lease THERANTE - 1,645 1,645
Debt as at 31 December 2023 20235 12A31 B HER 556,473 644,113 1,200,586
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

Significant capital expenditure contracted
for at the end of the reporting period but not
recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of land (Note 217(d))

In 2018, Xuyi Shirble Hanlian Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (“Xuyi Shirble”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, has
successfully bid the tender to acquire
ten parcels of land use rights in Xuyi,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, for a total
consideration of RMB252,600,000 and
paid RMB62,950,000 as the deposit. Due
to the prevailing weak market sentiment
in real-estate sector, a provision of
impairment loss of RMB62,950,000 was
recognised. The Group has disposed of
Xuyi Shirble in October 2023.

RBEMREATNERERREE
ZEREARFEZMNT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
WY - BE KR
2,943 4,659
WeBE T th (AT aE21(d)) - 189,650
2,943 194,309

R20184F » IFRRBRE Byttt
EBRAR([FREE]) -
—RXAEBEFZENE R
A EREBAREBEARE
252,600,000 7t Y& B + 18 iz
PR BETEHAF IR+
HMEAERKNFPERE X
R £ AR 62,950,000
T MR EHETEBRRT
BIEHEEX  BRABEFSIE
AR #62,950,0007T » A&
BB R2023F108 K&

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts
under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

Buildings:
Within 1 year
Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years
Between 4 and 5 years
Later than 5 years

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 4

CEE

1R
122F 7 [E
2E3F 7 fH
3E4FZE
4FEBF 7 A
sy lEes

RIB AT REE S E OB R R HKE
HERBERINT :

As at 31 December

M12831H
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

162,944 167,965
140,678 137,985
101,443 121,257

57,818 81,068

43,332 41,445
118,225 132,810
624,440 682,530
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

196

The Group is controlled by the following entities:

Name Type
7 i)

Shirble Department Store Immediate parent entity

Limited BEENRRER
Xiang Rong Investment Ultimate parent entity
Limited REBRAIER

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong.

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the
following transactions were carried out with
related parties:

Name

=L

Shenzhen Ruizhuo Investment Development
Company Limited (“Ruizhuo Investment”)

R iInEREERGRAF([ImERE])

Shenzhen Shengrunfeng Investment &
Development Co., Ltd (“SRF”)

AR EEREEFRBERAR(TRELZ])

Ms. ZHU Bi Hui

KEEZ+

Ms. HUANG Xue Rong is the chairlady of the
Board of the Group.

Mr. YANG Ti Wei is the deputy chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer of the Group.

Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

AEBE AR T ERIES -

Place of Ownership
incorporation interest
A AL 3L 3t B BEREESR
The British Virgin Islands 55.08%
RBRRES

The British Virgin Islands 55.08%
RERUES

AEBZRBREBRTRASAEX
+ .

SRz FRa VB MR E MBI
EHN - HERETETORBT

Relationship

B &

Owned in equal shares by Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s
cousins

5 RE AR It A R L SR b IR LAME R AR 1 B A

Ultimately owned by Ms. HUANG Xue Rong

HESALT&EHER

Mr. YANG Ti Wei’s cousins
GRS AR

HERLIRARENERLL -

M

BRERERAEENESTSRT
JEARITHABEL -

RSB A BRI N7 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

Key management includes directors (executive
and non-executive), members of the Executive
Committee and the Company Secretary.
The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown

below:

Basic salaries and allowances

Contributions to the retirement

scheme

EAXFE MR/
R ET &I R

The following transactions were carried out with
related parties. The prices for these transactions
were determined in accordance with the terms

of the underlying agreements.

(i) Rental expenses paid to related

parties

Ruizhuo Investment

In e XA

The Group entered into lease agreements
in respect of certain leasehold properties
with related parties of the Group for
their use as a retail shops and employee
dormitories.
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ZEEABBREST(WITRIE
IT) TR B EREBRAAMW
E - HEERBENIENEZEE

BAEMEISIT
2023 2022

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
1,556 2,395

14 25

1,570 2,420

ATREEETETIRS - %F
R 5 R EE TR AR ARRE 17 3% 70 IR R
BE -

() PEESXNZESMX

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETT

19 19

AEERETHAMEERN
SEBESFILEZHHEER
& WERTERMKEET
BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(i) Consideration from disposal of (i) EEMBATINKRE
subsidiaries
2023 2022
HKD HKD
BT BT
Ms. ZHU Bi Hui (Note 8(e)) KEWBLZ I (H718(6) 1 =
(i) Amount due to a related party (i) EABEESHNRE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETT

Ruizhuo Investment HERE 9 30
The outstanding balances with these hWEBEFNRERERE
related parties are unsecured, interest-free IR B NBIRERKER o

and repayable on demand.

(ii) Amount due from a related party (i) FEWEESNFE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Long-term receivables-SRF REIEYGRIE —RHE
(Note 21) (HtaE21)
Non-current portion JERNHA 336,164 47,922
Current portion BNEA - 299,430
336,164 347,352
Less: provision for impairment loss & : BtiF{EEE
allowance (Note 3.1(b)) TR R
(Kt5£3.1(b)) (336,164) (135,000)
- 212,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

(ii)

Amount due from a related party
(continued)

On 8 April 2019, the Group entered into
a consultancy agreement with SRF to
provide property development consulting
services. On 30 December 2020,
the Group entered into a termination
agreement with SRF for the purpose of
terminating the property development
consulting services effective from 30
December 2020.

On 30 December 2022, the Group
entered into a supplemental termination
agreement with SRF to extend the
repayment period to 31 December 2025,
2026 and 2027 with reference to the fact
that the construction progress of SRF’s
project has been slackened and the sales
of the property are less than the original
estimates due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC and a
series of contracting monetary policies
implemented by the PRC government.
The interest on the outstanding amount
will be accrued from 1 January 2023, and
will be payable in three installments on 31
December 2025, 2026 and 2027, at the
prevailing benchmark rate for three-year
RMB fixed deposit published by the China
Construction Bank in PRC from time to
time. The outstanding balances with SRF
is unsecured.
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(i)

FEWBRE 5 YRR IE (48)

R2019F 4 A8H » REEHE
RELET T AR RSE A
REEHEZRERRS -
MR2020%F 12 A30H + A& H
HRBEIT R 8

202012 A30H & IEEH
ERREAMRLE -

R2022%12A308 + @R
WA KXRITER B A R
MABEBRFERN—RIE
FEXHEMTE  K5E
2R BLEE EREER
TR EEREEE RKNE
RE&EEET - BERBEEE:
THAEKLEWE  JEFEH
R E & & 2025 - 2026 4F &
2027F12A31H - X(EES
R B 5 #2023F1 518
HEEHER - W 2025 20264
M2027F 128318 =8%
0 FBIERPBEERRITE
FEAMGH=ZFHAREE
T FIRITEERNERGE -
RHEREREHREERR
E/\] °

199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

200

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

(ii) Amount due from a related party
(continued)

On 29 March 2023, the supplemental
termination agreement with SRF
was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the
extraordinary general meeting subsequent
to the year end date.

As of 31 December 2023, a provision for
impairment loss allowance RMB336 million
was made (Note 3.1(b) (2022: RMB135
million).

(iii) Deposit from a related party

(i) FEWEEEHFHREE)

MR2023F 3 A29H & HFRH
YRNHARERECEFS
BERRRIRERE LER
R AR AR AL o

HZE2023F12A31H ' B2
EE AR 336 H & T H
BEBEFREE (F15E3.1(0)
(2022 : ARM1358 8

)0
(i) BEFHRE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Other receivables — Ruizhuo HipE —HEiRnE

Investment

Certain tenants and an ex-employee have
commenced legal proceedings in the PRC against
the Group in respect of disputes over contract terms
and employment contract terms. As at 31 December
2023, the legal proceedings are ongoing. The Group
has estimated the amount of contingent liabilities of
approximately RMB2,765,000 (2022: RMB631,000).

112 =

ATHPE—RAEEREBEHER
FEEAGHEFINEZNTREASE
B RFERFND - H{22023F12 A31
B FAMDEETH - AEBE AT
RBESEHARE?2,765,0007T (2022
& AR¥631,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE
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Balance sheet of the Company 2023 2022
KATEERBR Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M et ARET T ARBFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIRE 872,798 872,798
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWRIE 426,836 686,316
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIEESEEY 16,148 21,854
442,984 708,170
Total assets WEE 1,315,782 1,580,968
EQUITY =
Share capital RE AR 213,908 213,908
Share premium B @ (B 751,091 751,091
Other reserves H M (a) 107,881 107,881
Accumulated losses REtEE (a) (401,917) (225,756)
Total equity R 670,963 847,124
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E A ERFIA 644,819 733,844
Total liabilities waE 644,819 733,844
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERE 1,315,782 1,580,968
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by NATIBEABEERHAESSN2024F3
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and was AosA#LERA TIESERERE -
signed on its behalf.
HUANG Xue Rong YANG Ti Wei
BEEH BEgE
Director Director
EF S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

As at 31 December 2021 120215128318
Forfeiting of shares Rz R
Loss for the year EEEE

As at 31 December 2022 1R2022%12831R
Loss for the year EEER

As at 31 December 2023 #2023E12A31H

202

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

Other reserves
RtbfE

Capital  Share-based
Merger redemption  compensation Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve Other Total losses

HRABARER
SHfE  EARERE HERE At gt ZiER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
107,372 410 119 194 108,09 (202,408)
- - (119) (95) (214) -
- - - - - (23,348
107,372 410 - 99 107,881 (225,756)
- - - - - (176,161)
107,372 40 - 9 107,881 (401,917)
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The remuneration of every director is set out

below:

e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 B ILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023:

Name of director

EEns

Executive director
Mr. YANG Ti Wei

Non-executive director
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Chen Fengliang

Mr. Jiang Hongkai

Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 4

HITES
BRELE
FUTES

ETELL
BUKHTES
EIS T

TRALE
W EE

EEEZHMEINWT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2023F12A31HILEE ¢

Salary Retirement

allowances schemes
Fees and benefits contributions Total

e

ok ERREAN  BARETEER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®TR AR®TR AR®T R
541 1,556 14 2,111
270 - - 270
270 - - 270
270 - - 270
270 - - 270
1,621 1,556 14 3,191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 12 A31 R ILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022:

HZE2022F12A31 B ILEE

Salary Retirement
allowances schemes
Name of director Fees and benefits  contributions Total
e
B e EARERN RGBT BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL AREFTL ARETL ARETT
Executive director HiTEE
Mr. YANG Ti Wei 1GREs 345 1,417 15 1,777
Non-executive director FHTES
Ms. HUANG Xue Rong BERXL 259 - - 259
Independent non-executive B FHITES
directors
Mr. Chen Fengliang PR g 2 5 A 259 - - 259
Mr. Jiang Hongkai IEARE 259 - - 259
Mr. TSANG Wah Kwong BEN LA 259 = = 259
1,381 1,417 15 2,813

No retirement benefits were paid to or
receivable by directors’ services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2022:
nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
payments to the directors of the Company as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment (2022: nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year
(2022: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 20283,
there were no considerations provided to
or receivable by any third party for making
available the services of a person as a director
of the Company (2022: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there
were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of directors of the Company, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors (2022: nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 E 5

B ZE2023F12A31BILFE - #
E|EANRAEELTHBEIEARR
BIFRERFHE(2022F « ) -

RARWELTIARNNBEERE P
HEREEHREEAED  AREF
[ 3k F RE BEED AR £ R B 7
REBEBHEARS  THERA
#9(20224F : £) o

HZE2023F12A31BILFE - #
EREMALTETARRESNE
HmEERE=ZARERE=ZHE
UTEY (B (20224F : ) -

HE2023F12A31BLEFE - #
BUAQNFIES  ZESEEHZ
FEREEREEREATHAZE
o EEFRHEAMR H LT HE (2022
F4E)o
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

HUANG Xue Rong (Chairlady)

YANG Ti Wei

(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive officer)

CHEN Fengliang
JIANG Hongkai
TSANG Wah Kwong

TSANG Wah Kwong (Chairperson)
CHEN Fengliang
JIANG Hongkai

CHEN Fengliang (Chairperson)
YANG Ti Wei

JIANG Hongkai

TSANG Wah Kwong

JIANG Hongkai (Chairperson)
YANG Ti Wei
TSANG Wah Kwong

206

NCIE=E

S ERITEARE,)

T
TR

BEN(FE)
PR & ==
N

S
15 a4
IR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 [E &



CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHOW Chun Pong, CPA

YANG Ti Wei
CHOW Chun Pong, CPA

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountant

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

SQUIRE PATTON BOGGS
Suite 3201

One Island East

Taikoo Place

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

In China

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
PingAn Bank

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

Guangdong Huaxing Bank

In Hong Kong
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-111

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
Suite 1601, 16/F

Central Tower

28 Queen’s Road

Central, Hong Kong

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

33rd Floor, Building 1
Shenzhen Development Center
Renmin South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

Unit C2, 30/F

TG Place

10 Shing Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon, Hong Kong

www.shirble.net

00312.HK
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Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
BEBFIR

2R KE285

HEXE

161£1601=E

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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